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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Jana Small Finance Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jana Small Finance Bank
Limited (“the Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Profit and
Loss Account, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949, Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, (“ Accounting
Standards”) as applicable to banks and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2022, its profit and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (S5As). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,
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1. Identification of Non-Performing Advances (‘NPA;i ‘and Provisioning on

Advances:

Total Loans and Advances as at March 31, 2022: Rs 13,250.32 crores

Gross NIPA as at March 31, 2022: Rs 756.90 crores

Provision for NPA as at March 31, 2022: Rs 243.65 crores

Refer Schedule 18.7(a) “ Asset Quality - Classification of advances and provisions held” of the

financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Identification of NPA and measurement of
provision on account of NPA is made based on
the assessment of various criteria stipulated in
the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') guidelines on
‘Prudential Norms on Income Recognition,
Asset  Classification and  Provisioning
pertaining to advances’ ('IRACP').

The Bank is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the identification and
provision required against NPAs by applying
quantitative as well as qualitative factors. The
risk of identification of NPAs is affected by
factors like stress and liquidity concerns in
certain sectors.

The provision against advances is based on
criteria such as past due status, out of order
status etc. The provision in respect of such
NPAs are made based on ageing and
classification of NPAs, recovery estimates,
value of security and other qualitative factors
and is subject to minimum provisioning levels
prescribed by the RBI and approved policy of
the bank in this regard. In addition to this, for

e Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls (including
application controls) over approval,
recording, monitoring, and recovery of
loans, monitoring overdue/stressed
accounts, identification of NPA,
provision for NFPA, and valuation of
security including collateral. Testing of
Application controls includes testing of
automated controls, reports and
system reconciliations.

s LEvaluated the governance process and
tested controls over calculations of
provision on non-performing
advances, basis of provisioning in
accordance with the Board approved

policy.

o Selected the borrowers based on
quantitative and qualitative risk factors
for their assessment of appropriate
classification as NPA including
computation of overdue ageing to
assess its correct classification and
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restructured accounts, provision is made for
erosion/  diminution in fair value of
restructured loans, in accordance with the RBI
guidelines. Further, NPA classification is made
borrower wise whereby if one facility of the
borrower becomes NPA then all facilities of

such a borrower will be treated as NPA.

Additionally, the Bank makes provision on
exposures that are not classified as NPA
including  identified advances or group
advances that can potentially slip into NPA.
These are classified as contingency provisions.

The Management of the Bank also made an
assessment of the impact on borrowers account
due to Covid -19 pandemic and in line with the
COVID 19 Regulatory Package announced by
the RBI in respect of moratorium and
restructuring of advances as relief measures to
the borrowers.

We have identified 'Identification of NPA and
Provisioning on Advances' as a key audit
matter in view of the significant level of
estimation involved, as well as the stringent
compliances laid down by the RBI in this
regard.

provision amount as per the IRACP
norms and Bank policy.

Performed other substantive procedures
including but not limited to the following:

-
5

Selected sample of performing loans-and
assessed them independently as to
whether these should be classified as
NPA;

For sample selected, examined the
securily valuation, financial statements
and other qualitative information of the
borrowers;

Considered the accounts reported by the
Bank and other Banks as Special Mention
Accounts  (“SMA”) in RBI's Central
Repository of Information on Large
Credits (CRILC) to identify stress;
Performed inquiries with the credit and
risk departments to ascertain if there were
indicators of stress or an occurrence of an
event of default in a particular loan
account or any product category which
needs to be considered as NPA;

Assessed the appropriateness of asset
classification and adequacy of related
provisioning by performing procedures
such as computation of overdue ageing,
assessment of borrower level, NPA
identification ~ and  verification  of
applicable provision rates as per IRACP
norms and Bank's Policy on test check
basis;

Selected and tested sample of accounts
which were restructured under MSME
restructuring circular and Resolution
Framework for Covid - 19 related stress
circular for their compliance with the RBI
directions; and
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% Assessed the adequacy of disclosures
against the relevant accounting standards
and RBI requirements relating to NPAs.

2. Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and Controls:

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

The Bank has a complex IT architecture to
support its day-to-day business operations.
High volume of transactions are processed and
recorded on single or multiple applications.

The reliability and security of IT systems plays
a key role in the business operations of the
Bank. Since large volume of transactions are
processed daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner.

Appropriate  IT  general controls and
application controls are required to ensure that
such IT systeins are able to process the data, as
required, completely, accurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting.

We have identified ‘IT systems and controls” as
key audit matter because of the high level
automation, significant number of systems
being used by the management and
the complexity of the IT architecture and its
impact on the financial reporting system.

_| pertaining to backup,
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Our Audit procedures with respect to this
matter included:

o For testing the IT general controls,
application controls and IT dependent
manual controls, we involved specialists as
part of the audit. The team also assisted in
testing the accuracy of the information
produced by the Bank’s IT systems.

» Obtained a comprehensive understanding
of IT applications implemented at the Bank.
It was followed by process understanding,
mapping of applications to the same and
understanding financial risks posed by
people-process and technology.

Key IT audit procedures includes testing the
design and operating effectiveness of key
controls  operating  over user  access
management (which includes user access
provisioning, de-provisioning, access review,
password configuration review, segregation of
duties - and  privilege access), change
management (which include change release in
production environment are compliant to the
defined procedures and segregation of
environments is  ensured), program
development (which include review of data
migration activity), computer operations
(which includes testing of key controls
Batch  processing
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(including  interface  testing, incident
management and data centre security), System
interface controls. This included testing the
requests for access fto systems were
appropriately  logged,  reviewed  and
authorized,

* In addition to the above, the design and
operating  effectiveness  of  certain
automated controls, that were considered
as key internal system controls over
financial reporting were tested using
various techniques such as inquiry, review
of documentation/record/reports,
observation and re-performance.

*  Wealso tested few controls using negative
testing technique.

¢ Tested compensating controls and
performed alternate procedures, where
necessary. Understood where relevant,
changes made to the IT landscape during
the audit period.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

¢ The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the Chairman’s Statement, the Directors
Report including annexures to the Directors report and Corporate Governance Report
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statement and our
auditors report thereon and the Pillar I Disclosures under New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il Disclosures). The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

* Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and Basel
lII Disclosures and accordingly will not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.
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e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o« When we read the Other Information, if we conclude that -there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance as required under SA 720 (Revised) ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating
to Other Information’.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these f(inancial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and the
circulars, guidelines and the directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India, from time to
time. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of Bank,
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Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Bank has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast si gnificant doubt on the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as
a going concern.
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* Lvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act and Section 30(3) of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, based on our Audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
and found them to be satisfactory.

b) In our opinion, the transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have
been within the powers of the bank.
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¢) As explained in the paragraph 2 below, the financial accounting system of the
Bank are centralised and, therefore, accounting returns are not required to be
submitted by branches.

d) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Bank so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
¢) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

f) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act as applicable to the Banks.

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Bank's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the entity
being a banking company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable by virtue of Section 35B(2A) of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949,

j)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2021, in our opinion and

~==—to-the-best-of-ourinformation-and-according-to-the-explanations-giver-to-us:— ;

i.  The Bank has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Schedule 18.13 to the financial statements;

it. ~ The Bank did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank;
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V.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Bank to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Bank
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Bank from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Bank shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come te our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Bank has not declared any dividend during the year.

2. We report that during the course of our audit we have visited and performed select
relevant procedures at 30 branches. Since the Bank considers its key operations to be
automated, with the key applications largely integrated to the Core Banking System, it
does not require its branches to submit any financial returns. Accordingly, our audit is
carried out centrally at Head Office and Central Processing Units based on the records
and data required for the purpose of Audit being made available to us.
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Other Malter

The audit of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 was conducted
by M/s MSKC & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditor of the
Bank, who had expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements,
Accordingly, we M M Nissim & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants and Brahmayya &
Co,, Chartered Accountants do not express any opinion on the figures reported in
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of the above
matter.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No:0005155

f _
/ e ?‘gﬂg\h——“f

A m—
Sanjay Khemani G. Srinivas
Partner Partner
Membership No: 044577 Membership No: 086761
UDIN: 22044577 AJCOBD9922 UDIN: 22086761 AJPUNV7232
Date: May 17,2022 Date: May 17,2022
Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru

Chartergy

w2 *\Accountants /°
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Jana Small
Finance Bank Limited (the “Bank”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Bank considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Bank based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporling and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk thata material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
cffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatément
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Bank's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Bank's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Bank are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Bank; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Bank's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

F Jth
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control
over financial reporting established by the Bank considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 107122W/W100672 Firm Registration No:0005155

- ./éﬁh,‘(.

Sanjay Khemani G. Srinivas

Partner Partner

Membership No: 044577 Membership No: 086761

UDIN: 22044577 AJCOBD9922 UDIN: 22086761 AJPUNV7232
- Date: May 17,2022 Date: May 17,2022

Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Xin000's)
' As at As at
Schedule 31.03.2022 31,03.2021

e (Audited) (Audited]
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital 1 20,14,116 20,07,273
Reserves and surplus 2 99,92,874 92,61,506
Deposits 3 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
Borrowings q 4,50,98,320 4,81,53,193
Other liabilities and provisions 5 93,79,801 76,27,809
TOTAL 20,18,87,132 19,09,09,052
ASSETS

Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 60,00,194 46,22,872
Balances with banks and money at call and short notice 7 093,70,728 1,79,74,840
Investments 8 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852
Advances 9 13,00,66,792 11,61,19,172
Fixed assets 10 17,16,470 21,20,570
Other assets 11 40,80,342 30,93,746
TOTAL 20,18,87,132 19,09,09,052
Contingent liabilities 12 4,17,430 4,74,594
Bills far collection - -
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial 17 & 18
statements

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants . ;

: g b Laowdie
ICAI F}_m Registration No.107 122W/W 100672 { R

15 Or, Subhash Khuntia
; Part-time Chairman
DIN; 05344970
Sanjay Khemani <
Partner %
Membership Number: 04 s
Mumbai, May 17, 2022 SRR

arfiesh Ramanathan 10
Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00163276
For Brahmayya & Co.,

Chartered Accountants J LI"J.,
ICAl Firm Registration No:0005155 g

E Lakshmi R N
R Company Secretary
G. Srinivas
Partner

Membership No: 086761

Bengaluru May 17, 2022 Bengaluru, May 17, 2022




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2022
) ~ e (%in DO0O's)
! Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS Schedule 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
;e _{Audited) | (Audited) |
1. INCOME
Interest earned 13 2,72,65,351 2,49,77,080
Other income 14 32,37,632 23,50,801
TOTAL - 3,05,02,983 2,73,27,881
il. EXPENDITURE
Interest expended 15 1,33,67,509 1,23,45,784
Operating expenses 16 1,13,88,210 1,04,73,113
Provisions and contingencies 56,93,206 36,65,922
TotAL 1 30848925 |  264,84,819
1l PROFIT/(LOSS)
Net profit for the year 54,058 8,43,062
Balance in Profit/{loss) brought forward (4,08,31,582} (4,12,66,476)
TOTAL {4,07,77,524) (4,04,23,414)
IV. APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 13,497 2,10,766
Transfer to Capital Reserve 30,546 31,436
Transfer to Investment Reserve Account 2,937 1 -
Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve 5,794 1,65,966 |
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet (4,08,30,298) (4,08,31,582)
V. EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
(Face value of per share X 10 per share)
Basic (X) 1.06 16,62 |
i Diluted (%) 0.99 15.70 |
i |
Significant accounting policies and notes to the financial 17 & 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date

For MM Nissim & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

iCAIl Eirm Registration No.107122W/W100672

)‘Z:-\-T.‘.__

£
i

Sanjay Khemani
Partner :
Membership Number: 044577
Mumbai, May 17, 2022

For Brahmayya & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No:0005155

G. Srinivas

Partner
Membership No: 086761

Bengaluru, May 17, 2022

o
i
o

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Ajay Kanwal
Managing Director & CEQ

Or. Subhash Khuntia
Part-time Chairman
DIN: 05344972 ’

AL

DIN/“ 7886434
[
%R Tharashankar

Chief Financial Officer

b
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P
Ramigsh Ramahathan
Director

DIN: 00163?_56

Jabt

Lakshmi R N
Company Secretary

Bengaluru, May 17, 2022
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

e {310 000's)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
{Audited) (Audited)
Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before taxes 54,058 8,43,062
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on bank's proparty 8,08,153 8,26,769
Loss on sale of fixed assets 2,076 77,344
Employee stock option expenses 24,194 (9,654)
Provision for non performing assets 2,87,048 588,846
Bad debts written off 58,53,286 23,27,031
Provision for standard assets (including standard restructured accounts) (4,57,705) 7,82,291
Premium amortisation on HTM investments 29,447 44,952
Operating profit before working capital changes (i) 66,00,557 54,80,641
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in investments 91,93,454 (82,89,710)
(Increase}/Decrease in advances (1,96,30,069) (2,02,51,232)
Increase/(Decrease) in deposits 1,15,42,740 2,73,39,802
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (10,14,265) (3,53,605)
{Increase)/Decrease in fien marked fived deposits 1,14,007 (1,35,793)
Increase/{Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 17,52,002 24,03,697
Net change in working capital (ii) 19,57,869 7,13,159
Direct taxes (paid)/refund (iii) 27,669 {41,439)
Net cash flow from operating activities (I}+{ii)+{ii) {A) 85,86,095 61,52,361
Cash tlow used in investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (4,08,420) (4,27,243)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 2,291 2,721
{Increase)/Decrease of held-to-maturity securities (1,28,97,555) {1,22,32,744)
Net cash {used in) investing activities (8) (1,33,03,684) (1,26,57,266)




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

. e — - B . {XIn 000's}
“Year ended Year ended
Partlculars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
{Audited) (Audited)
Cash Flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 6,843 87
Securities premium received 6,53,131
Proceeds from issue of Tier |l capital bonds 5,00,000 .
Increase / (decrease) in other borrowings (35,55,168) 1,91,66,364
Net cash used in financing activities () (23,95,194) 1,91,66,451
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A)+{B)+(C) (71,12,783) 1,26,61,546
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the period/year (refer note 2 & 3) 2,24,61,919 98,00,373
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year (refer note 2 & 3} 1,53,49,136 2,24,61,919
Notes:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3
ch Cash Flow Statements specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of 'Cash & Balances with Reserve Bank of India (Schedule 6)' and 'Balances with
Banks and Maney at Call and Short Notice (Schedule 7)',

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents excludes lien marked Deposits of X 2.18 crores and X 13.58 crores respectively as on
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

As per our report of even date

For M M Nissim & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Director
Chartered Accountants o Lo L
ICAl Firm Registration No.107122W/W 100672 g L__‘. PRTE -
> . Y. Dr.Subhash Khuntia Ajavif(anwal
AT . yeghal Part-time Chairman Managing Director & CEQ
! i : 4 DIN 05344972 DIN: (37886434
Sanjay Khemani '
Partner
Membership Number: 044577 — L2
Mumbai, May 17, 2022 o Ram\shﬁdmar\athdr\ mThafashankar
Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00163276
For Brahmayya & Co.,

(ol
Chartered Accountants Mh‘d ]L'

ICAl Firm Registration No:0C05155
LakshmiR N
Company Secretary
G. Srinivas
Partner
Membership No: 086761

Bengaluru, May 17, 2022 Bengalury, May 17, 2022




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

-,,,,_,,, S R e —T

| PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

| (Audited) {Audited)

SCHEDULE L- cAPITAL

Authorised Capital

Equity

100,000,000 (March 31, 2021: 100,000,000) Equity Shares of X 10 each 10,00,000 10,00,000

Preference

250,000,000 (March 31, 2021; 250,000,000) Preference Shares of % 10 each 25,00,000 25,00,000

Issued, Subscribed, Caliedup and Pald-Up Capital

Equity '

51,411,564 (March 31, 2021: 50,727,257 ) Equity Shares of % 10 each fully paid up 5,14,116 507,273

Preferance

156,000,000 (31 March 2021; lSD,OUO,pOOi 16% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 16,00,000 15,00,000

Preference Shares of % 10 each fully paid up

TOTAL 20,14,116 20,07,273

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS

I STATUTORY RESERVE
Opening balance 12,37,531 10,26,765
Add: Additions during the year 13,497 2,10,766
Less: Deductions during the year - -

TOTAL o 12,51,028 12,37,531

Il CAPITAL RESERVE
Opening balance 1,69,528 1,38,092
Add: Additions during the year 30,546 31,436
Less: Deductions during the year - -

TOTAL 2,00,074 1,69,528

. SHARE PREMIUM
Opening balance 4,81,85,124 4.81,77,238
Add: Additians during the year 6,56,367 11,886
Less: Deductions during the year - -

TOTAL 4,88,45,491 4,81,89,124

V. GENERAL RESERVE
Opening balance 1,44,101 1,44,101
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: Deductions during the year -

TOTAL 1,44,101 1,44,101

V. INVESTMENT RESERVE
Opening balance ] B
Add:Additions during the year - 2,937
Less: Deductions during the year -

TOTAL 2,937 -

VI INVESTMENT FLUCTUATION RESERVE

i Opening balance 2,12,323 16,357

| Add: Additions during the year 5,794 1,65,966
Sy PO AONEIEE e e ———————— | - ;

TOTAL 2,18,117 212,323




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

e ISR -
As at As at
| PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
o N | (Audited) (Audited)
VI EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS RESERVE
Opening balance 1,40,481 1,62,074
Add: Employee Stock Option expense during the vear 24,194 (9,719)
Less: Transfer to Share Capital / Securities Premium on exercise of stack aptions (3,251) (11,874)
TOTAL 1,61,424 1,40,481
VIl BALANCE IN PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT (4,08,30,298) (4,08,31,582)
ITOTAL (I to ViII) 99,92,874 92,61,506
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS
A l. Demand deposits
i. From banks 692,268 5,39,933
il. From others 70,06,299 59,42,818

Il. Savings bank deposits

Il. Term deposits

2,28,29,265

1,42,78,065

i. From banks 2,53,37,752 2,00,86,995
ii. From others 7,95,36,437 8,30,11,460
TOTAL (1 to 1) 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
B.I. Deposits of branches in India 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
li. Deposits of branches outside India - u
TOTAL (I to 1) 13,54,02,021 12,38,59,271
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS
I. Borrowings In India
a. Reserve Bank of India 80,00,000 .
b. Other banks* 31,449,500 57,44,500
c. Other institutions and agencies® 3,39,53,820 4,21,34,530
Il Borrowings outside India . 2,74,163
TOTAL (1 and 1) 4,50,98,320 4,81,53,193

Secured Borrowings included in {1){c) above is % 13 crores (March 31, 2021:  73.92 crores)
*Includes Sub-ordinated debt (Tier Il capital) % 303 crores (March 31, 2021: % 343 crores)
* Includes sub-ordinated debt (Tier |1 capital) X 153 crores (March 31, 2021: % 358 crores)




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

—— . - {RIn00O's)
i As at As at
PARTICULARS | 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
i N e e T (Audited) | (Audited) "
SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
1. Hills payable 42,59,459 21,42,373
Il Inter office adjustments (net) - -
. Interest accrued 23,55,746 23,79,575
IV. Others (including provisions) 20,03,310 18,87,967
V. Standard Asset- General Provision 7,61,286 12,17,894
TOTAL1to V) 93,79,801 76,27,809
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
. Cashin hand 7,78,170 6,16,262
Il. Balances with Reserve Bank of India
a. In Current account 52,22,024 40,06,610
b. In Other accounts ) N
TOTAL (I ta 1) 60,00,194 46,22,872
SCHEDULE 7 - BALANCES WITH BAN KS AND MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
I In India
i) Balances with banks
a) In Current accounts 48,942 1,47,193
b) In Other daposit accounts* 21,786 11,97,647
ii} Money at call and short notice
a} With banks
b} With other institutions - -
¢) Lending under reverse repo {Reserve Bank of India) 93,00,000 1,66,30,000
TOTAL (i to i) 93,70,728 1,79,74,840
Il Outside India
I} InCurrent accounts * -
ii}) In Other deposit accounts
ii) Money at call and short notice "
' TOTAL (i to iif) - -
GRAND TOTAL (I to 1) 93,70,728 1,79,74,840

* As of March 31, 2022, Includes deposit with banks of 2 2,18 crores lien marked towards guarantee issued by other banks on the heha
rked towards borrowings from banks and

—oftheBank—Further-as ot Warch 31, 207 Tincludes depasit with banks of X 13.58 crores lien ma
financial institutions as security deposit & guarantee issued by ather banks on the behalf of the

Bank,




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

PARTICULARS

{0 QOU's)

L asat | Asat
| 31.03.2022 . 31.03.2021
| (Audited) | [Audited)

'SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS ———m = iat T .
I. Investments in India (net of provisions)
i) Government securities 4,97,27,381 4,69,77,852
) Other approved securities -
iii) Shares - -
iv) Debentures and bonds - “
v) Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures - -
vi) Others (Security Receipts) 9,25,225 -

TOTAL 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852

il Investments Qutside India - -

ot I -

GRAND TOTAL {I to 1) 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852

Il Investments

i) Gross value of investments
a) In India 5,06,52,725 4,69,81,887
b} Qutside India - -
Total 5,06,52,725 4,69,81,887
it) Depreciation/provision for investrents
a) In India 119 4,035
b) Qutside India
Total 115 4,035
i) Net value of investments
a)In India 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852
b) Outside India - -

Total o 5,06,52,606 4,69,77,852

SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES (Net of Provisions)

A. 1) Bills purchased and discaunted 13,79,679 46,000
i) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans repayabie on demand 71,427,717 883,99,200
iii} Term loans 12,15,39,336 10,71,73,972

TOTAL 13,00,66,792 11,61,19,172

B. i) Secured by tangible assets * 6,80,53,637 4,84,97,022
il) Covered by bank/government guarantees 25,865,380 11,21,643
i) Unsecured 5,94,26,775 6,65,00,507

lfﬁfﬁi - wo— — ———13;00,66,792 —11,61,19,172
{’ Including Advance against book debt

(0
\




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022

: e — e, IRIN00DY)
=R , T i i e SR e —
PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
e - . - (Audited) {Audited)
C. I ADVANCES IN INDIA
I} Priority sector* 9,64,35,285 8,12,30,231
if) Public sector - -
il) Banks 1,865,391 -
iv) Others?* 3,34,45,116 3,48,88,941
* Priority sectors includes % 1,010 crores (March 31, 2021: € Nil crores), in respect of which the
Bank has sold Priority Sector Lending Certificates {PSLC).
C. ITADVANCES QUTSIDE INDIA - -
TOTAL 13,00,66,792 11,61,19,172
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS
{l. Premises -
il Costasatthe end of the preceding year - -
it} Additions during the year -
iil] - Deductions during the year - -
iv)  Depreciation to date -
v) Capltal Work in Progress
TOTAL -
il Other fixed assets (including furniture and fixtures)
i} Costasat the end of the preceding year 64,40,273 61,73,859
i1} Additions during the year 4,59,845 3,71,207
69,00,118 65,45,066
ili) Deductions during the year (2,13,931) (1,04,793)
Iv) Depreciation to date {49,81,490) (43,32,199)
v} Capltal Work in Progress 11,773 12,496
TOTAL* b 17,16,470 21,20,570
“Includes leased assets of % 13.22 crores (March 31, 2021: % 18.45 crores)
GRAND TOTAL (1 and I} 17,16,470 21,20,570
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS
I Inter office adjustments (net) - -
Il Interest accrued 19,60,805 10,19,549
. Tax paid in advance / tax deductad at source {net of provisians) 6,10,543 582,672
IV, Stationery and stamps # -
V. Non Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - -
Vi. Others* 15,08,994 14,91,525
* Includes deposit with RIDF and other funds of ® 1.38 crores (March 31, 2021: 2 1.96 crores)
TOTAL e o 40,80,342 30,93,715
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
I Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts - 3,04,680 3,59,089
t—tmbilityforpartiy paid vestmerts - .
il Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts s
V. Liability on account of outstanding derivative contracts . -
V. Guarantees given on behaif of constituents
al In India 25,000 25,000
h) Qutside India
VI, Acceptances , endorserments and other obfigations - -
VII. Other items for which the Bank is contingently llable 87,740 90,505
TOTAL 4,17,430 4,74,594 |

>
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Accountants

! Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
| o | {Audited) (Audited)
SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED
I. Interest/discount on advances/bills* 2,41,20,339 2,30,14,464
I, Income on investments 25,59,535 17,19,188
Il Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of India and other inter-bank funds 5,85,090 2,43,282
V. Others 387 146
* Includes interest recoveries from technically written off accounts
TOTAL 2,72,65,351 2,49,77,080
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME
I, Commission, exchange and brokerage 24,13,708 16,10,552
I Profit/ (loss) on sale of investments (net) 46,521 2,07,881
Ul Profit / (loss) on revaluation of investments (net) - .
V. Profit / (loss) on sale of land, buildings and other assels(net) {2,066) (77,279)
V. Profit on exchange / derivative transactions (net) . -
VI. Income carned by way of dividends from - -
subsidiaries/joint ventures abroad/in India
Vil Miscellaneous income” 7,79,469 6,09,647
it Includes PSLC income X 12.71 crores (March 31, 2021: % Nil), recoveries from
written off accounts X 57.42 crores (March 31, 2021: % 52.82 crores), and lease
income X 7.25 crores (March 31, 2021: X 7.25 crores)
TOTAL » 32,37,632 23,50,801
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED
I, Interest on deposits 93,04,237 87,03,097
Il Interest on Reserve Bank of India/inter-bank borrowings 30,07,747 20,66,092
. Other Interest (Inclduing interest on debentures and other borrowings) 10,55,525 15,76,595
TOTAL 1,33,67,509 1,23,45,784
SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES
I Payments to and provisions for employees (refer note 18.4 and 18.14) 69,89,890 61,84,586
Il. Rent, taxes and lighting [refer note 18.22(0}) 9,15,632 10,10,975
Il. Printing and stationery 89,670 62,635
IV. Advertisement and publicity 1,05,901 1,68,441
V. Depreciation an bank's property (including leased assets) 8,08,153 8,26,769
VI. Director's Fees, allowances and expenses 5,515 5,477
Vil Auditors' fees and expenses 10,028 10,822
Vill. Law charges 75,876 | 40,951 |
IX. Postage, telegram, telephone etc. h 1,63,299 2,04,443
X, Repairs and maintenance 2,70,869 3,01,404
Xl Insurance 1,64,910 1,26,803
XIl. Other expenditure 17,88,467 15,29,807
(a). Travel and conveyance 3,50,393 2,53,273
(b). Professional fees {includes cost of outsourced technology support services) 9,64,472 9,33,679
(c). Others 4,73,602 3,42,855
TOTAL 1,13,88,210 1,04,73,113
\
jl':-' d [ Chartered




JANA SMALL FINAMNCE BANIK LIMITED
Schedule to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

SCHEDULE - 17
Significant Accounting Policies appended to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION:

Jana Small Finance Bank Limited (Formerly known as Janalakshmi Financial Services Limited - the “Company”),
headguartered In Bangalore, engaged in providing a wide range of banking and financial services. Originally incorporated
on July 24, 2008, the Com‘pany registered as a Non-Banking Financlal Company (NBFC) with the Reserve Bank of India on
March 4, 2008, The Company got classified as a NBFC-MFI effective from September 5, 2013, The Company became a
public fimited company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, with effect from August 10, 2015,

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting {EGM) held on January 12,
2018 and the issue of small finance bank license by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on April 28, 2017 under section 22{1) of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 “Janalakshmi Financial Services Limited” {the “Company”) converted itself into a Small
Finance Bank with effect fram March 28, 2018, Accardingly, the name of the Company was changed to Jana Small Finance
Bank Limited (the “Bank”).

The Bank has received scheduled Bank status with effect from 16 July, 2019 vide publication in the Gazette of India (Part
ill - Section 4) dated july 27 = August 02, 2019. Accordingly, Jana Small Finance Bank Limited Is included in the second
schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual
basis of accounting and on-going concern basis, unless otherwise stated and In conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP), which comprise applicable statutory provisions, regulatory norms/guidelines prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of india (RBI), Banking Regulation Act 1949, Aceounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules
2021, in so far as they apply to the banks and the current practices prevalent within the banking industry in India.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (Including contingent liabilities) as of the date of
the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting period. Management helieves that the
estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable, Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Any revision in the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods,

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION:

i, Interest incame on lpans, advances and investments Is recognized In the Profit and Loss Account on accrual basis except
income on advances, investments and other assets classified as Non-Performing Assets (NPAs), which is recognized upon
realization, as per the prudential norms prescribed by the RBL Unrealized Interest on NPA is reversed in the Profit and
Loss Account and is recognized only on receipt basis. Further, charges and penal interest on advances is recognized on

receipt basis.

i, Income on non-coupon bearing discounted Instruments 1s recognized over the tenure of the instruments 50 as (o
provide a constant periodic rate of return.

iii. Processing fees on loan, direct assignment and securitisation is recognised upfront when it becomes due,

iv. Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis where the right to receive the dividend is established,

v, Interest incomes on deposits with banks and financial institutions is recognlzed on a time propartion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the implicit rate of interest.

vi. PSLC related income and expenses is recognised as and when they become dug,
vil. All other fees are accounted for as and when they become due.

e LS




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
schedule to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

SCHEDULE - 17

significant Accounting policies appended to and farming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

4. INVESTMENTS:

Classification:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, investments are classified into three categories, viz. Held to Maturity (HTM), Available
for Sale (AFS) and Held for Trading {HFT). Under each of these categories, investments are further classified under six
groups — Government securities, Other Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures and Bonds, Investments in Subsidiaries /
Joint Ventures and Other Investments.

The transactions in Securities are accounted on “Settlement Date” of accounting except in the case of equity shares where
trade date accounting is followead.

Bosis of clossification:
i Investments that the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified under “Held to Maturity (HTM}” category.
i Investments that are held for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified as “Held for Trading (HETY",

iii. Investments, which are not classified in the above two categories, are classified as “Available far Sale (AFS)". Further,
as per the RBI guidelines, HFT securities, which remain unsold for a period of 90 days are reclassified as AFS securities.

iv. An investment Is classified as HTM, HET or AFS at the time of its purchase and subsequent shifting amongst categories
is dane in conformity with regulatory guidelines.

Transfer between categories:

Transfer of investments from one category to the other is done in accordance with RBI puidelines. Transfer of securities
from AFS / HET category to HTM category is made at the lower of book value or market value. In the case of transfer of
securities from HTM to AFS / HFT category, the investments held under HTM at a discount are transferred to AFS | HFT
category at the acquisition price and investments placed in the HTM category at a premium are transferred to AFS/ HFT at
the amortized cost. After transfer, these securities are re-valued and resultant depreciation, If any, Is provided.

Transfer of investments from AFS to HET or vice- a- versa is done at the baok value. Depreciation carried, if any, on such
investments is also transferred from one category to another.

Acquisition Cost:
Broken period Interest if any, paid on acquisition of investents is debiled to Prafit and Loss Account. Broken period

interest received on sale of securities is recognized as interest income,

Valuation:
Investments classified under AFS and HFT categories are marked to market individually and depreciation/appreciation is

aggregated for each group and net depreciation in each group is provided and net appreciation is ignored.

Traded investments (if any) are valued based on the trades / quoles on the recognised stock exchangas or prices
published by financial Benchmarks India Pyt Ltd. (FBIL) with Fixed income Money Market and Derivatives Assaciation
(FIMMDA) as the calculating agent.

The market value af unquoted government of-India-securities, state_government securities ete. which are directly issued
by the government of india is computed as per the prices published by FBIL with FIMMDA as the calculating agent -

Unquoted equity shares are valued at the preak-up value, if the latest Balance sheet is available or at % 1 for each
campany as per the RBI guidelines.

Units of mutual funds are vaiued at the latest repurchase price / net asset value declared by the mutual fund.

Treasury bills, commercial papers and certificate of deposits being discounted instruments, are valued at carrying cost.

Net depreciation in the value, if any, compared to the acquisition cost, in any of the groups, is charged to the Profit and
Loss Account. The net appreciation, il any, in any of the proups is not recognised except Lo the extent of depreciation

provided earlier
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Investments classified under HTM category are carried at their acquisition ¢ost and not marked to market. Any premium
on acquisition Is amortised over the remaining maturity period of the security on a constant yield-to-maturity basis. Such
amortisation of premium is adjusted against interest income under the head "Income from investments”, Any diminution,
other than the temparary, in the value of investments in HTM category is provided for

Security receipts (SR) are valued as per the net asset value provided by the issuing Asset Retonstruction Company from
time to time.

Non-performing investments are identified and provision are made thereon based on the RBI guidelines. The provision on
such non-performing investments are not set off against the appreciation in respect of other performing investments,
Interast on non-performing investments is not recognized in the Profit and Loss Account until received

Disposal of Investments:

Profit / Loss on sale of investments is taken to Profit and Loss Account. However in case of profit on sale of investments in
“Held to Maturily” category, an equivalent amount of profit (net of applicable taxes and amount required to be
transferred to statutory reserves) is appropriated to Capital Reserve in accordance with RBI guidelines. Cost of
investments is based on the weighted average cost method.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase tronsactions:

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, repurchase (Repo) and reverse repurchase (Reverse Repo) transactions in
povernment securities and corporate debt securities are reflected as borrowing and lending transactions respectively.,
Borrowing cost on repo transactions is accounted as interest expense and revenue on reverse repo transactions is
accounted as interest income,

5. ADVANCES CLASSIFICATION AND PRQVISIONING:

Classification:

Advances are classitied into performing and non-performing advances ('NPAs') as per the RBI guidelines and are stated net
of specific provisions made towards NPAs. Further, NPAs are classified into sub-standard, doubtful and loss assets based
on the criteria stipulated by the RBIL Provisions for NPA is made at rates as prescribed by the RAI and as per Bank's
internal credit policy and same is charged to the Profit and Loss Account under Provisions and Contingencies.

Non-perfarming advances are written-off in accardance with Bank's policies. Amounts recovered against debts written-off
are recognised in the Profit and Loss account as "Miscellaneous income” under Other Income (Schedule 14),

The Bank considers a restructured account as one where the Bank, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, grants to the borrower concessions that the Bank would not otherwise consider.
Restructuring would normally involve modification of terms of the advances/securities, which would generally include,
among others, alteration of repayment periad/ repayable amount/ the amount of instalments/ rate of interest (due to

- reasons other than competitive reasons). Restructured accounts are classified as such by the Bank only upon approval
and implementation of the restructuring package. Necessary provision including diminution In the fair value of a
restructured account is made and classification thereof is as per the extant RBI guidelines.

The Bank maintains a general provision on standard advances at the rates prescribed by the BBl Provision made against
standard assets is included in "Other liabilities & provisions” (Schedule 5),

The Bank transfers advances through inter-bank parlicipation. In accordance with the RBI guidelines, in the case of
participation with risk, the aggregate amount of the participation issued by the Bank is reduced from advances. In case of
participation with non-risk sharing, the aggregate amount of participation is dassified as borrowings.

-y
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The Bank vide RBI circutar FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015- 16 dated April 07, 2016 trades in Priority Sector portfolio by
selling or buying Priorily Sector tending Certificates (PSLCs). There is no transfer of risk on loan assets in these
transactions. The fee paid for purchase of the PSLC is teated as an ‘Expense’ and the fee received for the sale of PSLCs s
treated as ‘Miscellaneous Income’.

Floating Pravisions:

Provisions made, it any, In excess of the Bank’s policy for specific loan loss provisions for non-performing assets and
regulatory general provisions are categorised as fleating pravisions, Creatien of toating provisions is considered by the
Bank up to a level approved by the Board of Directors In accordance with the RB! guidelines, floating provisions dre used
up to a level approved by the Board only for contingencies under extraordinary circumstances and for making specific
provisions for impaired accounts as per these guidelines or any regulatory guidance / instructions. Floaling provisions, if
any, are shown under “Other liabilities and Provisions” (Schedule 5).

6. SECURITISATION AND TRANSFER OF ASSETS:

Assats transferred through securitisation and direct assipnment of cash flows are de-recogmised when they are sold (true
On sale of stressed assets, if the sale is at a price below the net book value (i.e., funded autstanding less specific
provisions held), the shortfall is charged to the Profit and Loss Account and if the sale is for a value higher than the net
book value, the excess provision is credited to the profit and Loss Account in the year when the sum of cash received by
way of initial consideration and / or redemplion or wransfer of security receipts issued by SC/RC exceeds the net book
value of the loan at the time of transfer.

in respect of stressed assets sold under an asset securitisation, where the investment by the bank in security receipts {SRs)
backed by the assets sold by it is more than 10 percent of such SRs, provisions held are higher of the provisions required
o terms of net asset value declared by the Securitisation Company {'sC’) / Reconstruction Company ('RC’) and provisions
as per the extant norms applicable to the underlying loans, notionally treating the book value of these SRs as the
corresponding stressed loans assuming the toans remained in the books of the Bank.

The Bank invests in Pass Through Certificates (PTCs) issued by other special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs). These are accounted
at acquisition tost and are classified as investments. The Bank also buys loans through the direct assignment route which
are classified as advances. These are carried ot acquisition cost unless it is more than the face value, in which case the
premium is amortised based on effective interest rate method.

pank recopnices Excess Interest Spread (EIS) only on cash basis and Over Collateralization, if any, is included in the Gross
Advances and it is provided for as per the provisioning norms of Ril

Direct Assignment portfolio bought by the Bank, i any, are classified as advances. These are cartied al acquisition cost
unless it is more than the face value, in which case the premium is amaortised over the tenor of the loans.

7. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation as adjusted for impairment, if any. Cost includes cost of
purchase inclusive of freight, duties, incidental expenses and all other directly attributable expenditures towards
acquisition and installation of assets before it is ready for commercial use. Subsequent expenditure incuired on assets put
to use is capitalised anly when it increases the future benefit / functioning capability from / of such assets, Specific grant

recelved for acguisition of fixed assets are reduced from the costof the asset.

Depreciation on fixed asset s charged over the estimated uselul life on a straight ling basis after retdining a residual value
of 0.01%, except fur leasehold improvements and software which are [ully depreciated.




IANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
Schedule to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

SCHEDULE - 17
Slgnificant Accounting Palicies appended to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022

The Bank is following the estimated useful life as stated in the Part € of Schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013 which is as

below:

Type of Asset Useful Life

Computers including desktops and electronic equipment 3 Years

Servers and networks 6 Years

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Electrical installation 10 Years

Motar vehicles 8 Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Leasehold improvements Remaining primary leasehold period as per agreement

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use,

The estimated useful 1ife of the intangible assets are reviewed at the end of ecazh financial year and the amortisation
period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any,

Software is depreciated fully over the useful life of the software based on the license validity or five years whichever is
earlier.

Fixed assets purchased during the year are depreciated on the basis of actual number of days the asset has been put to
use in the year, Fixed assets disposed off during the year are depreciated up to the date of disposal.

Profit or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of a Fixed / Intangible Asset are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of fixed/ intangible assets and recognized as income or
expense in the Profit and Loss Account. Profit on sale of premises, if any, is transferred to Capital Reserve as per the Ril

puidelines.

8. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Other than loans and advances);

In accordance with AS-28- Impairment of assets, Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication
of impairment of assets based on internal / external factors. Impairment loss, if any, is provided in the Profit and Loss
Account to the extent of carrying amount of assets exceeds thelr estimated recoverable amount, which is higher of an
asset’s net selling price and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the rovised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.
When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting periods no lenger exlists or
may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account, o the extent the
amount was pre;ic:us_ly charged to the Profit and Loss Account,
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4, FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS:

(1) Foreign currency transaclions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction

{it) Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms
of nistorical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the tansathion.

All exchange differences are recognized as income OF as expenses in the period in which they arise.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Defined contribution plan:

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the contributions are charged to the profit and Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the
respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective funds,

Defined benefit plan and compensated absences:

Liability for defined benefit gratuity plan and accumulated compensated absenceas is determined by estimating the present
value of amount of benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
Bank accounts for its lability for unfunded compensated absences and funded gratuity based en actuarial valuation, &s at
the Balance Sheet date, determined annually by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Bank
makes contribution to Gratuity Funds managed by life insurance companies. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in

full in the Profit and Loss Account for the period and are not deferred.

Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits expected to be paid in consideration for the services rendered by the employees is
recognized during the period when the employee renders service.

11. INCOME TAXES:

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax expense incurred by the Bank. The current
tax expense and deferred tax expense are determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
as per Accounting Standard 22 - Accounting for Taxes on incoma respectively

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the accounting
income that originate in ene period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future. In case of unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognized
only if there is virlual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tox assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain to be realized.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Bank regorts basic and diluted earnings per share In accordance with Accounting Standard - 20, Earnings Per Share. Basic
parnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weightaed average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of exercise of employee stock options
and restricted stock units, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders and share split,

Dituted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if contracts to issue equity shares were exercised
or converted during the year. Biluted earnings per pquity share are computad using the weighted average number of
equity shares and the dilutive patential equity shares (stock options, restricted stock units and convertible prefergnce
shares) outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. Wancg
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13. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS:

In accordance with AS 29 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Cantingent Assets, the Bank creates a provision when
there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it Is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding
retirement benefits} are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the balances sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refleet the
current best estimates. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resource would be required to settle the obligation,
the provision is reversed.

Adisclosure for contingent liability is made when there is:

i} A passible obligation arising from the past events, the existence of which will be confirmed by occurrence or nen-
accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the bank; or

ii) A present obligation arising fram a past event which is not recognized as it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be macde,

When there is a possible obligation or present abligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in Lhe financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and
if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the
periad in which the change occurs,

14. ACCOUNTING FOR LEASE:

Operating Lease!

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased term are
classified as operating leases in accordance with Accounting Standard 19, Leases, Lease rentals on assets under operating
lease is charged off to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis in accordance with the AS-19.

Finance Lease:

Leases under which the Bank assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Assets taken on finance lease are initially capitalised at fair value of the asset or present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge
and reduction of the outstanding liability, The finance charge is allocated to periods during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability for each period.

Asset given on finance lease

In_case of assets given under finance lease, leased assets are recognised-as-a-receivable at an-amount equal-to tho net
investment in the lease, Lease rentals are apportioned between principal and interest on the internal rate of return. The
principal amount received reduces the net investment in the lease and interest is recogmised as revenue.
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15, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with Reserve Bank ol India, balances with other

banks/institutions and money at call and short notice.

16, CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Bank are segregated.

17, SHARE ISSUE EXPENSES:
Share issue expenses are adjusted against Share Premium Account in terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION:
The disclosure relating to segment information is in accordance with Accounting Standard-17, Segment Reporting and as
per the guidelines issued by RBI. 8ank has classified its business into following for segment reporting:

(a) Treasury includes all investment portfolios, Profit / Loss on sale of Investments, equities, income from maoney market
operations.

{b) Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes all advances to companies and statutory hodies, which are not included
under Retail Banking.

{c) Retail Banking includes lending to and deposits from retail customers and identified earnings and expenses of the
segment,

{d) Other Banking Operations inciudes all other operations not covered under Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale Banking
and Retail Banking.

Unallocated includes Capital and Reserves and other unallocable assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
Expenditure incurred towards corparate social responsibility are recognised as and when becomes due.

20. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN and RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS:
Designated Employees of the Bank receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the intrinsic method and
recognized, together with a corresponding increase in the "Employees Stock options outstanding account” in reserves,
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Bank's best esfimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits
expense.

Consequent to R8I Guidelines on Compensation of Whole Time Directors/ Chief Executive Officers/ Material Risk Takers
and Control Eunction Staff, new stock options grantad to Whole Time Directors, Chief Executive Officars and Material Risk
Takers an or after Aprii 01, 2021, are recognised at fair value on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model.

21. BORROWING COST:
Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
vorrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an

adjustment to the interest cost.
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scheedule 18 - Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1 Capital

1.1 Copital Adeqguacy Ratlo {CAR)

The following table sets farth, for the year indicated, computation of capital adequacy as per the operating guidelines.

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cormmaon equity ter 1 capital 986,93 924,69
;i’inr 1 capital 1,136.93 1,074.69
Tier 2 capltal 330.39 344.14
Total capital (Tier 1 + Tiar 2} } 1,467,312 1,418.83
| Total Risk Weighted Assets (R\WAs) 9,613.11 | 9,147.05 |
Camman equity tier 1 mp:nl r.m(, t.p) [Commaon equity tier 1 a5 4 percentage of RWAS) 10.27% 10.11%
Tu-r 1 capital ratio (%) {Tler 1 Cdpnal 359 percentage of RWAS) 11.83% 11.75%
Tlr:rz capital ratio (%) [Tier 2 Capital a5 a percentage of RWAs) 3.43% 3,?13‘}-;
Capital to RWASs ratio (%) (CRAR) (Total Capital as a percentage of RWAs) 15.26% 15.51%
Leverage Ratlo 5.63% 5.62%
Percentage of the shareholding of Gavernment of India - -
[Amount of tier 2 capital raised through dabt capital lnstruments during the year 50.00

i,urmg the year the Bank has renewed subordinated debt {Tier 2 capital) amounting ta 2 75 crores and repaid € 255 crores (March 31, 2021; Nil]. Subordinated
dent {Tier 2 capitat) outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is A5 crores {March 31, 2021 1701 croras).

1.7he Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR) has heen computed in accordance with RBI Cireular No. REN/Z016-17/81 DRR.NBD No. 26/16.13.218/2018-17 dated
Qctober 6; 2016 on Operating Guidetings for Small Finance Banks. As par the said circular, prudantial regulatory framework will Largely be grawn from the
tasel standards for capital requirements and  Basel 11 standardized approach for ceedit risk. Further, the R wide s Circular Mo
DRRNBD.No.4502/16.13.218/2017-18 dated November 08, 2017 has provided an exemption 1o all Small Finance Banks whereby na separate capital charpe 5
prescribed for market risk and eperational risk.

2. The Bank has appliad 100% risk weight on advances charged as security against grandfathered Borrowings on the date of conversion Into a Small Finance
Bank.

1. Sub-ordinated debt inclusion in Tier 2 capital has been fimited to 50% of Tier 1 capital,

I accordance with the RBI guidelines, banks are required ta make Pillar 3 disclosures under the Basel 11l Framework and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)
Disclosures. Those disclosures are avaitable on the Bank's website at the fellowing link: hitps://www janabank.com/regulatory- disclosures/

The disclosures have not been subjected to audit by the statutory auditors of the Bank.

1.2 Capital Infusion
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has issued equity shares having face value of %10 each for cash pursuant 1o preferential allotment of

6,81,423 equity shares at 2 968.56 cach aggregating to R 66.00 crores (March 31, 2021: NIt} Further, during the year ended the Dank has allotted 2,884 equity
sharos (March 31, 2021. 8,654) respectively with respect of stock options exercised aggregating to € 0.32 crores (March 31, 2021: ¥ 1.20 crores).

Detalls of movement in the paid up equity share capital are as below :

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No, of Equity ArEGAL No. of Equity Amount
shares shares
Fquity shares as at the beginning of the year 5.07,27,2%7 50,73 5,07,18,603 50,72
Addition pursuant to stock option exercised 2,884 0.00 8,654 0.01
Addition pursuant to equity shares issued during the year 6,81,423 0.68
Equity shares outstanding as at the end of the year ) 514,11,564 51,41 5,07,27,257 50.73

in terms of Section 12 of (he Banking Regulation Act 1949, the subscribed capltal of a banking company operating in India shall npt be less than one-half of the
authorized capital, and the paid-up capital shall not he less than one-hall of the subscr! bed capial. As at the commencement of hanking operations (March
28, 2018), the Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Bank was € 39.29 crores as against the autherised share capital of % 1,327.60 crores. The Bank has
received scheduled Bank stalus with effect from july 16, 2019 vide publication in the Gasetle of India (Part 1 - Section 4) dated July 27 = August 02, 2019
Accordingly, Jana Small Finance Bank Limited is included in the second schedute of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, As on july 31, 2019, the issucd,
aubscribed and paid up capital of the Bank was £ 167 16 crores which forms 14.85% of its authorized share capital. The Bank's paid-up capital as on July 31,
2019 met the statutory requisement as above, while {he subseribed capital did not meet with the statutory requirement of being not less than hall of the
Authorized Capital.

In urder to comply with the above statutory requirement, on February 03, 2020 the Bunk has diminished it's authorised share capital to X 350 crores
comprising Equity Share Capilal of 1100 crores and Preference Share Capital of 2 250 croces,
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(A enounts are in Iadiaon Kupees in Ceores amiess oftherw e stated)

_March 31, 2022 | N

Nul profit after tax {€in crores) . 7 o - 540

Weighted average number of equity shares in computing the basic earings per share 5.08,19,200 5,07,25,972

Basic earnings per share & 1.06 16.62

y shares i computing the diluted earningt per ¢hare 5,36,84,498

Weightad average number of ¢

Diluted earnings per share €

Norminal value per share ®

1. Basic earnings per share is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity sharehclders by the waighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

2. Diluted earnings per equity share 18 computed by dividing net profit or 10ss for the year attebutable to equity shareholders by winghted averige number of
equity shares including potential equity shares outstanding as at the end of the year, except when results ace antl dilutive.

3 The dgilutive impact is an account of stock opticns granted to employees and Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares.

1. Reserves

3{a) Statutory Reserve
The Bank has transferred € 1.35 crores (March 31, 2021: X 21.08 crores) to statutary reserves pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Banking

Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI guidelines dated September 23, 2000.

3(b) Capital Reserve
Tho Bank has transferred € 305 crores (March 31, 2021: 2 3,14 crares) 1o capital reserves, beng the profit from sa'e of HTM investiments, net of taxes and

appropnation 10 statutory reserve, as per the RBI regulations.

3{¢) Share premium account
Share issue expenses amounting to T Nil (March 31, 2023 Nil) are adjusted from securities promium account i terms of section 52 (2) (€) of the Companies

Act, 2013

3|d} Investment Reserve
The Bank has transferred 2 0,29 crores (March 31, 2021: Nil) to Investment Reserve, being the excess degreciation provisions created on CAFS' or HFT'
categorivs of investment than the reguired amount for the year, as per the R8I regulations,

3{e] Investment Fluctuation Reserve
As per REE master direction, Barks were required 10 create an IFR with effect from 2018-19 to reach a level of 2% of HFT and AFS portfolo within a .

three years, where feasible. IFR shall be created by transferring an amount not less than the lower of the following:

{i} Net profit on sale of investinents during the year

{in) Net profit for the year less mandatory appropriations

The Bank has transferred T 0.58 ceores far the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: R 16.60 crores) to investment fluctuation reserves,

3{f) Drawdown of Reserves 5
Ounng the year ended March 331, 2022: there wera no drawdewn from reseqves (March 31, 2021 (Nl
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4. Employees Stock Option Plan Scheme

The Rank has share- based payment schemes for it's employees. Schemes in operations during the year ended March 31, 2022 are Employes stock option plan
schreme 2017, Employes stock option plan scheme 2018, Restrictive Stock Units Scheme 2017 and Restrictive Stock Units Scheme 2018,

The details of the Employee Stock Option Plan Schemes (ESOP) and Restrictive Stock Unit Scheme (RSU) during the year ended March 11, 2022

- Particulars L o ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 RSU 2017 RSU 2018

Gram dale e Various dates | Varlous dates Various dates Various dates
Sub-set of LSOP | Sub-set of ESOP

Total aptions under the pla 5 23,697

#01_ ptions under the p _;1__ 13,07,__79 20,23.69 2017 3018

Musmber of options granted 1,86,094 1,815 17,638 9,149

Miesthod of settlement Equity Eqquity Equity Equity

Vasling

25% after one yeat from the date
of gramt

25% after two years from the date
of grant

25% after three years from the
date of grant

Balance 25% after lour years fro
Lhe date of grant

One year from the date of grant

Exercisable period

The Exercise period shall be
subject to a maximum period of §
years commencing from, the date
of vesting of such Option or 2
years from the date of Listing,
whichever is later.

The Cxercise period shall be subject
to a maximum peried of 5 years
commencing from, the date af
vesting of such Option or 2 years
from the date of Listing, whichever is
later.

Vesting conditions

Continued employment/ service
wath the Company on relevant
date of vesting, including with the
Subsidiarles Company, a5 the case
may be

The NRC shall have the power to

accalerate Vesting of all Unvested

Options o an Employee who i

considered a Good Leaver

Continued employment/ service with
the Company on relevant date of
vesting, including  with the
Subsidiaries Company, as the case
may be

Thie NRC shall have the power Lo
accelerate Vesting of all Unvasted
Optiens of an Employee who s
considered a Good Leaver.

Exeriise price per option (%)

960.59 and 968.56

1000

s

@/ Chartergq

* \Accountants -




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

fAIlL oemounts are in indian Rupees in Crores unless otnerwise statet)

Ihidi‘ﬂ'li?‘_k_lfﬁ E_!ll_p!!.)_!.l.:gVS}F?C‘KVQB(EL‘BLEEH"SL|Iclll$i_{_fsgpl and Reslrictive Stock Unit Scheme {RSU) during the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

ESOP 2017

ESQP 2018

__Rsu 2047

RSU 2018

Grant Date

Various dates

Cption available under the plan

_Various dates

Vaniaus dates

Various dates

Sub-set of £50P

Sub-set of ESOP

18,67,579 20,23,697

vesting

o 2017 208
Number of Options granted ——— ) 25,512 17,564 1,041
Method of Settlament ] Equity Equity Fquity Equity
25% after ane year from the date
of grant
25% after two years from the date
of grant

25% after three years from the
date of grant

Balance 25% after four years from
the date of grant

One year from the date of grant

Exercisable period

The Exercise penod shall be
subject Lo a maximum period of 5
years commenaing from, the date
ol Vesting of such Option or 2
vears from the date of Listing,
whichever is later,

The Exercise period shail be subject
to a maximum peried ol §  yeary
commencing  from, the date of
vesting of such Option ¢or 2 years
from the date of Listing, whichever 15

later.

Vesting conditions

Continued employment/ service
with the Company on ralevant
date of vesting, mnciuding with the
Subsiiaries Cornpany, as the case
may be.

The NRC shall have the power 10
accelerate Vesting of all Unvested
Options of an Employea who is
considered a Good Leaver.

Continued employment/ service with
the Company on relevant date of
vesting, including with the|
Subsicharies Company, @5 the case
may be.

The NRC shall have the power Lo
accelerate Vesting of all Unvested|
Optlons of an Employee who s
considerad a Good Leaver,

|Exercise price per option (%)

9G0.59

10.00

The following are the putstanding options as at year ended March 31, 2022:

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars 7
ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2017 (RSU) | ESOP 2018 (RSU)

Total Options granted and outstanding at the Lieginning of the year 14,51,448 3,93,039 63,075 14,656
Add: Options granted during the year 1,86,094 1,815 17,688 9,183
Less; Options forfeited / lapsed during the year 1,721,478 69,896 1,687
Less : Options exercised during the year . . 841 2,043
Options Outstanding as at end of the yoar 14,60,064 3.24,958 79,922 20,115
- Vested 7,98,301 1,80,921 71,083 10,926

- Yet ta vest 6,61,763 1,44,037 3,839 0,189

The following are the outstanding options as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021t

Particulars

As at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

ESOP 2017 ESOP 2018 ESOP 2017 (RSU) | ESQP 2018 (RSU)

Total Options granted and outstanding at the beginning of the year 16,90,629 5,03,932 45,211 23,769
Add: Options granted during the year 25,512 17,864 1,041
Less: Options forfeited / lapsed during the year 2,64,693 1,10,893 . 1,5c0
Less : Options exercised during the year . . . 8,654
Options Qutstanding as at end of the year 14,51,448 3,931,039 63,075 14,656
- Vested - o o o TGO EIAT —LALI03 RTAPELE S 13,615

- Yet to vest 7,56,614 2,51,936 1,041 1,041

of Board the Bank has adoptad 'Intrinsic Value' method for accounting of share based payments.

As'per SEBI guidelines, the accounting for share based payments can be done ithar under the 'lntrinsic Value® basts or 'Fair Value' basis. As per the approval




JANASMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHIDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORt THE YFAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(All emaounts are in Indian Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stotid)

For the year " For the year

Particutars ended March 31, | ended March 31,
—— e —— R R _ 2022 _ 2021

s poyee Stack Oplion expenditure S o ) i — 013 ) _m_."ﬂ
Restichive Stock Units expenditure o o . T H-"Jﬁ N (0.20)]
Total ] 2.42 [0.97}
Particulars e March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Armscunt of Employee stock options and restrictive stock units autstanding ) 16.14 14.05

Eften of fair value method of accounting - share based payment plans in the Profit and Loss Account and on its financial position:

The key assumptions used in Black Scholes model for calculating value of aptions as on the date of the grant are from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

R

ESOP 2017 & 2018
and ESOP (RSU)
2017 & 2018

Particulars

\_J'arhbles R T
1. Rise froo interest rate o 5.74% - 6.26%
2. Expected life (in years) 450
1. Expected volatility 68.09% - 70.42%
4, Dwidend yield 0.00%

5. The weighted average fair value of options granted X = 623,19
The key assumptions used in Black Scholes madel for calculating value of options as on the date of the grant are from April 1, 2020 to March 31, 2021

ES0P 2017 & 2018?
Particulars and ESOP [RSU) |

2017 & 2018

Varlables o o Tranche 4
1. ftisk Free Interest Rate 5.15% - 5,75%
2. Expected Life (in years) B 450
3. Expected Volatility o = BA.63% - 67.49%
A. Dwidend Yield . 0.00%
5. The weighted average fair vatue of optiens granted X 578.09

The guldance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India requires the disclosure of pro farma net results and Earnings Per Share {EPS) both
hasic and diluted, had the Company adopted the fair value method amortizing the stock compensation expense thereon over the vesting period, the reported
profit would have teen lower by € 14.03 crores (March 31, 2021: reported profit would have been lower by ® 28,55 crores). The basic and diluted EPS for the
year ended March 31, 2022 wau'd have been 2 (1.70) and % (1.70) respectively (March 31, 2021: 110.99 and % 10.39).

The sxpected life of the stock optien is based on historical data and current expectation andt is not necessarily indicative of the pattern that may occur. The
expected volatitity reflects the assumption that the historical volatifity of a comparable Hsted entity for 5 years perlod ended on the date of the grant is
indication of future trends which may rot necessarily be the actual outcome.
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

{Al gmounts are n indian Rupees in Crares unless otherwsse staled)

5(b} Movement of provision for depreciation and Investment Fluctuation Reserve

Partic i gl T Manen 31,2022 | March 3, 2021 }
i) Movement of pruvismn_s held owards dnpreciéﬁaﬁsrﬁrﬁ;stmcnls - B TSy
a) Opening balance T “:'_M“ B B A “Wﬁ!:,‘:!‘(‘;— _—:_V_ T
b) Add. Provision made during the year - - - 040
¢) Less: Write-off fwrite back of excess provision during the year B ) ; ‘;A_v o o egel .
dl Closing balance == e Y 040
i) Movement of lavestment Flucation Reserve (IFR) o i - j el i:m‘ o
a) Opening balance o 2023F 4.61
b) Add: Amount transterred during the year o 58 16.59 |
_Cless Crawdown . i
A Closngbalance 7181 213
uii) Closing balance in IFR as a pmccnlngg_of clasing balance of investments in AFS and HFT/Current Category . 1.07% 0.70%

5(c) Sale and Transfers to/trom HTM Category

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has not transferred securities fron held-to-maturity (HIM] category to available-for-sale {AFS) Category.

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has not undertaken any transactions for sale of securities of the HTM portfoho at April L, 2021 The above
cale 1s excluding sale to ABH under pre-announced open markel operation auctions and repurchase of gavernment securities by Gavernment of india, as

parmitted by RBI guidefines.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, with the approval of Board of Ditectors, the Bank transferred securities with a net book value of 1 350,52 crores from
held-1o-maturity (HEM) calepory 10 available-for-sale (AFS) category, being transter of secutities at the beginning of the accounting year as permitted by the

RBE

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Bank unzertook 4 transactions for sale of securities with 3 nei book value of T 35652 trares, whizh wis 81.53% of
the HTM portfolio at April 1, 2620. The above sale Is excluding sale 10 RBI under pre-announced open murkel operation auctions and repurchase of

government securities by Government of india, as permitted by the R8I guidelines.

14 accordance with the R8I guidelines, salas from, and transfers to / fram, HTM category exclude the following from the 5% cap
1. One-time transfer of securities permitted to ba undertaken by banks at the beginning of the accounting year with appravat of the Board of Diceciocs,

2, Saies to the RBI under pre-announced open market operation auctions;

3. Repurchase of Government securities by Government of India from banks;

4. Additional shafting of securities explicitly permitted by the RBI from time to time;

5 Repurchase of state development loans by respective stale governments under buy back /swich operations, and
6. Direct sales fram HTM lor banging down SLR haldings in the HTM category.

5(d) Non-SLR investment Portfolio
he NPA in noa-SLR investment is given below

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

a) Opening balance

b) Add: Addition during the year

) Less: reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

2] Total Provision held

{iil tssuer-wise cornpasilion of non-SLR mvestments
As on March 31, 2022, the Bank held below non-SLR Investments.

# Amounts reparted under these columns above are not mutuaily exclusive

Extent of
Extent of “below Extent of Extent of
Hssuer Amount private investment "unrated” “unlistad”
placement¥ graded” securitiest securitiast
securitiest
1.Publ sector undertakings . , -
2 Flnancial institutions : i o B .
3.Banks - - £ 4 “
4. Private corporates = . B
S.Subsidaries / Joint ventuges i ” o
& Others (security Receipts) B 9252 o G50
7.Provision held towards deprecistion : . B
Total s2s2) - | ED s




JAMASMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHIDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

{Alf amounts are in Indian Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Bank had written off non-SLR investments in unlisted equity shares of 20 10 crores

SR

Extent of
Extent of "below Extent of Extent of
Issiaer Amaunt private Investment “unrated” Yunlisted”
placament¥ graded” securitiest securitiest
. B o securitios! - -
1.Public sector undertakings i
|2 Financial institutions
1Barks T - T
U == SN SR—— - I
APrivatecorporates .
5.Subsidiaries / Joint ventures
0.0thers B
7.Provision held towards depreciation
Total . i
# Arnounts reported under these columas above are not mutuolly exclusive
S{e) Repo/ Reverse Repo Transactions
Details of repo / reverse repo deals (in face value terms) (including LAF and TREPS) done during the year ended March 31, 2022,
Minlmum Maximum Daily Average —
Particulars outstanding outstanding outstandiog March 31, 2022
during the year | during the year | during the year :
Securities sold under repo
I Governmenl securities
a} MSF (Repo with RBI) 8.00 53.00 0.23
b) Tri-Party Repo {TREPS) 0.05 499,96 251.07
¢} Market Repo [ CROMS) 0.99 200.94 34.06
ii. Corporate debt securities N . . : 3 z
iii. Any other securities [SLTRO) ) 15000 800,00 219 82000
Securilies purchased under reverse repo
1 Government securities o
A} LAF {Reverse Repo with RB1 16,85 2,276.00 33593 930.00
bj Tri-Party Repo (TREPS) 5 - =
¢) Market Repo | CROMS) e
ii, Corpotate debt securities
fii. Any other securities
Detalls of repa / reverse repo deals {in face value terms) {Including LAF and TREPS) for the year ended March 31, 2021
Minimum Maximum Daily Average Outstanding as at
Particulars outstanding outstanding outstanding March 31 2021
during the year | during the year | during the year !
Securities sold under repo . # 5
I. Government securities . - 3
3} MSF [Repo with RBY) : 4.00 5.00 0.02
L b) Tri-Party Repa (TREPS) 0.05 199.98 51.90 ———
c) Market Repo [ CROMS) 4.96 99.79 0.30
il. Corporate debt securities . - v
iil. Any other securities
Securities purchased under reverse repo
I. Government securities : 2 z :
a) LAF [Reverse Repo with Ri 5.00 2,013.00 404.18 1,663.00
b) Tri-Party Repo (TREPS) 10.00 100.00 0.97 -
¢} Market Repa { CROMS) 4,99 500 0.04
it Corporate debt securities 2
it Any other securities




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11, 2022

(A amaunts ave i indian Repees i Crores unfess atherwise stated)

G Derivatives
Uisclosure wilh respect to outstanting Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap (CCIRS)

a) Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap

March 3 rl?m.i_1

b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives - Not applicable

t) Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
{1} Qualitative Disclosure

Particulars March 31, 2022
i} The national principal of swap agreements T 2370
i) Losses which would b incuered if counter parties failed to fulfil their obligation under the agreernents T an
i) Collateral required by the Bank upon enlenng in1o swaps - r 1191
iv] Concentration of credit risk ansing from the swaps - [ Nl Nl
IV Fair value of the swap book B - 372
The nature and terms of the Cross Currency Interest Rate Swap . o R

Nature Terms ‘ B | Benchmark No. of deals
L Hedging Flpating payable vs lixed recewvabie o USD MIFGR o

The Bank's treasury function is responsible for Bank's access ta financial markets. Further, treasury function monitors and manages various risks relating to
treasury aperations of the Bank including currency risk, market risk and liquidity risk. In course of managing these risks, the Bank may use vanious market
mstruments as pecmissible for the Baok based on RBL guldelines and internat approvals. Further, compliance with vanous policias and exposure kmits s
reviewed by the internal auditors as required. The Bank does not eater into any trade in financial instruments including derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes, The grandfathered external commercial borrawing at the time of transitionn to Small Finance Bank was fully hedged and saime was
repaid during the financial year ended March 31, 2022, Further, as per operating guidelings for Small Finance Banks fssued by the fRBI, there are no derivative

transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2022 {March 31, 2021 2 Nil).

= lii} Quantitative Disclosure

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Particulars Currency

Interest Rate

Currency

Interest Rate

B Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
a) For hadging® " 23170
b} For trading .
{ii} Marked 1a Market Fositions T e _ﬁ B
172

a)Asset (+) .

by Liability (-) il I I

() Credit Exposure

{iv) Likely impact of one percentage change In interest rate (100 PVO1)

a) on hedging denvatives

b) on trading derivatives

(vl Maximum and Minimum of 100*PVO1 observed during the year

a) on hedging

bjon trading -

Perlalns 1o Cross currensy interast rate swap

d) Credit default swaps

The Bank has not transacted in credit default swaps duning the yeor ended March 31, 2022, {March 31, 2021 Nif)

MAYYS

AT

Q( Chartergqg

b
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Al omounts qre (o lndion Rupess in Crares untess otherwise stated)

7. msset Quality
{a) Classificatlon of advances and provisions held

As aiMarch 31, 2027

T _ . NGII'P(!If["rI'I.\i.;’}MMM 7 77777777777777777
ot b Total Non- |
Particulars Tty Sub-standard Doubtful Loss performing Tetal
Advances
Advances
Gross Standard Advances and NPAs
|Opening Salance 10,993.33 800.33 5101 5.74 857.98 1185131
Add:Additions during the year# 1,304.24
Less:Reductions during the yeard® « 5 ; -1,405.31 T
Closing balance 12,4934 744.44 756,00 | 1325042
Reductions in Grass NPAs due to:* P | ]
i} Upgradation o 248.31
#) Recoveries (pxcluding recoveries from -
V?1.67
upgraded accounts)
i1} Technical/ Prudential Write-of(s 552.63
v} Write-offs other than those under (i} above 3270
Provislons (excluding Floating Provisions)
Opening halance of provisions beld 121.80 209.86 2371 5.74 239.31 361.21
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year” R SR e 622.97
Less: Excess pravision reversed/ Write-offs i p ) e -6518.64
Closing balance of provistons held 76.13 232.88 10.77 24365 319.78
INet NPAs
Opering Balance 590.47 28.21 (18,68
Add: Fresh additions during the year S 945.18
Less: Reductions during the year* gair it ] i -1,050.61
Closing Balance 511.56 1.69 - 513.25
Ay at March 31, 2021
Standard Non-Performing
Total Non-
Rabeo s Btalacg Sub-standard Doubtiul Loss performing Totat
Advances
Advances ki
Gross Standard Advances and NPAs . R
Opening Balance ) 9,816.63 162.68 157.93 ' 120.81 10,137 44
Add: Additons during the yearfin s i o S R28.19
Less: Reductions duang the yearé* gaiialad Sl Seehianl e i S -291.01
Closing balance 10,993.33 800.33 51.91 574 857.98 11,851.31
*Reductions in Grass NPAs due to: i S
i Uppradation 41.49
it} Recoverias {excluding recoveries from 16,82
upgraded accounts)
i) Technical/ Prudential Write-offs 218.850
iv) Write affs other than thase under (i) above 13.90
Provislons (excluding Floating Provislons)
Opening balance of provisions held 43.68 139.69 18043 224.11
Add: Fresh provisions made during the year § s 291.58
Less: Excess provision reversed/ Write-offs SR Hif o -2324.7
Closing balance ol provisions held 121.90 209.86G 23.71 5.74 234.31 36121
Net NPAS -
Opening Balance 132,14 140.38 ¢+
Add: Fresh additions during the year BN RN o SR 617.77 |
Less: Reductions during the year® A S SRl ~139.48
Closing Balance ) 590.47 2821 618.68

i Additions and reductions doey

" Balancmng Fgure

A Qutstanding, balance as of March 31, 2021 has beon considered an “Additions during the year for accounts which are asaled as NPA p0st vacation

standstilof NPAS as per the Supreme Court juddgement dated March 23, 2021 and the RIS1 circular dated Apnl 07, 2021

S Reprissant provision magde durin,

3 the year (including weite offs) as per the Profit & Loss account

ot indlude accounts which tureed NPA during a parteular manth and subsequeatly moved sut of NPA i the same month

of




TANA SMALE FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDRULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(A armounts are i indicr Rupees i Crores unless athenwise stoteid)

The Honeuradle Supreme Court of India (Hea 'ble SC), wide an interim order dated September 03, 202000 the wat petition (Gajendra Sharma Vs Untor of Indea
& Anr), had diected that the accounts which were not declared Non-Performing Assets ('NPA') LIl August 31, 2020 shal! not
orders. Accordingty, an account, which was fiol classified as NPA as al August 31, 2020, had not been classfied as NPA subsequently as per the RECs Master
Circular - Prudential Norms on Incame Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining Lo Advances [IRAC norms)

o dectarsd as NPA Ll Furtner

The interim order pranted to not declare accounts as NPA stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of the Hor'ble SCin the matter of Smait Seale
industrial Manufacturers Association ve UO! & Qrs. and other connected matters, In sccordance with the instructions in paragraph 5 of the RBI circular duled

April 07, 2021 issued in this connection, the Bank has conbinued with the asset classification of borrower

oxtant RBIinstructions / IRAC narms

Floating Provislon as at Magch 31, 2022

unls for the financal yeor March 2021 as ger
¥

Standard No:!-_i;_el;ﬂir:n'il;gi Ia—
Total Non- |
Particulars Total § . Total
atdlStandent Sub-standard Doubtiul Loss performing

Advances
| e e e e e e e e hdvnnces S e -
Opening Balance B T |
Add: Additional provisions made duning the yaar
Less: Amouat drawn down during the year
Closing balance of floating provisions
Floating Provision as at March 31, 2021 .

Standard Non-Performing

Particulars Total Standard Tatal Nc?n‘ Total
Sub-standard Doubtful Loss performing
Advances
Advances
Opening Balance
3 B

AdU: Additional provisions made during the year | =+
Less: Amount drawn down during the year . g
Closing balance of floating provisions S

Technical or prudential write offs

Movement In the stock of technical and prudentially written-off accounts and recoveries made thereon is as given below:

Technicai of prudential write-offs refer to the amount of non-performing assets which are outstanding in the books of the branches, but have been watten

off Hully or partially) at the head office ievel.

Particufars o March 31, 2022 | March 3l,?.()_2-l~
Qpening balance of techmical / prudential wate-clfs accounts N 2,663.85 252260
Add. Technical / Prudential write-olfs during the year 652.63 218.80
Sub - Total (A L 3,216.48 2,741.40
Recoveries made from technicalf prudentiol wetten off accounts during the year 57.42 47.21
Actual Write-offs during theyeae b 22,43 30 34
Sub - Total (8) 79.85 77.55
Closing balance {A-B) 3,136.63 2,663.85
Ratios {in per cent) March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Gross NPA to Assets Under Managament {AUM) 4.98% 6.73%
Net NPA to Net Assets Under Management (AUM) 3.43% 4.95%
Gross NA to Gross Advances ) 5.71%)| 7.24%
tot NPA to Net Advances 3.95% 5.33%
Provision-coverage ratiotnciuthng Technicabwrte-off) —— _;____ B0:82% B2AAE
Provision coverage ratio (Excluding Techmcal wiite off) 32.19% _27.89%)
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(A amounts gren Indinn Rupees in Crores unless atherwise stated)

T{b}Sector-wise advances

March 31, 2022

Parcentage of
e rotnvns| SRR | e
that sector
A Priority Sectar
1. Agriculture and allied activities ) 2.532.0 156 65 6.19%
Lz“.:\dvanccs to Industries sector eligible a;-;nma_r;ly sector lending R 940,45 9,59 1.02%
(i) Textiles 121.24 2.11 1.74%
3. Services 1,338.84 41 87 101%
T iy Retail T B 82134 14.83 181%
[4. Personal loans . 500087  s15.4z 16 29%
Subs lotal (A4 9,871.18 723,53 7.33%
8. Nen Priority Sector
i.Agncullure a"nrlalhcdntliuilius e S
2. industry 79.51 .11 0.14%
3. Sewvices 1,750.02 6.3 0.36%
(i) NBFCs B 760.45 0.00%
(i} Retail Trade 663.70 4.24 0.64%
A Parsonal loans*® 1,549.61 26.95 1.24%
Sub total {8) 3,379.15 3338 0.99%
Total (A+B) 13,250.33 756.90 5.71%

*Personal toan includes hausing loans

# Priceity sectors includes X 1,010 crores, In respect of which the Bank has sotd Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLE).

The Bank has compiled the data for the purposs of this disclosure from its internal MIS system/reparts, which has been furivished by the Management and

has been retied upon by the auditors,

March 31, 2021
Percentage of
o | s |, St
S that sector

A Priority Sector
1. Agriculture and allied actvities 1,620.13 152.95 Q.44%
1. Advances to inoustries sector eligible as pricrity sactor lending o 322.88 19.72 6.11%
'3 Services o #2969 66,20 7 98%
4. Persgnal loans® 5,546.07 44782 8.07%
subtotal(A) 8,318.97  686.60 8.25%
B. Non Priority Secter
1. Agriculture and allied activities
2. Industry 256.60 30,51 11.89%
3. Services 1.584.96 3098 1.95%

(1Y NBFCS 642 84 0.00%

(il Retall Trada 102.01 15.52 3.80%
4. Personal loans* 1,690.81 109.81 6.49%
'sub total { B) 3,532.35 17129 | 2.85%
Total {A+B) 11,851.33 857.98 7.24%

*Persenal loan includes housing loans

The Bank has compiled the data for the purpose of this disclosure from ity internal MIS system/reports, which has been furnished by the Management and

has been relied upon by the audgitors
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(AN omounts are m Indian Rupees i Crores unfess otherwise stated)

7{t) Overseas Assels, NPAs and Revenue

The Bank does not hold any Gversedas assets / NPA as 3t March 11, 2027 and 00 averseas operations were andertaken duning the year eadod March 31, 2022
hence sevenue from overseas operation is N (March 31, 2021: Nitj

7({d) Details of Resolution Plan implemented under Prudential Framwork for Resolution of Stressed Assets

There were no accounts that have been restructured under prudential framework on resolution ol stressed assels as per e creular no. RBIZ2018-19/203
DERNo.BP.BCAS/21.04.048/2018-19 dated June 07, 2019 during the year ended March 31, 2022, (Marech 31 2021: Nil).

7{e} Divergeace In the asset classification and provisianing

BB wde its circular OBR BP.BCN0G3/21 04.018/201€-17 dated Agni 18, 2017 and Nonfication dated Apnit 01, 2019, has directed banks shall make suitobie
drsclosures, if either or both of the following conditions are satisfied:

(o) the adaitionel provisioning for NPAS assessed by RBt exceeds 10 per cent of the reported profit before provisions and contingencies for the reference

period, and

{b) the additional Gross NPAs identitied by HBI exceed 15 per cent of the published tcremental Gross NPAs For the reforence pericd,
tnspection for the linancial year ended Narch 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022 is yel to ba cenducted by the Ril

7{f) Details of Non Performing Financial Assets Purchased / Sold

Details of toans transferred excluding through inter-Bank Participation Certificate (IBPC) during the year ended March 31, 20022 under the RBI Master Direction
an Transfer of Loan Fxposures dated September 24, 2021 are given below: (March 31, 2021: Nil)

To permitted athar

Particulars Non-Perfarming Assets sold To ARCs P transferees

transterees 3

[please specify)

No. of accoums 211,00 g
Apgregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 131.4%
Weighted average residual lenor of the foans transferred 13.02
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer) G8.18
Apgragate consideration 108.85 ‘ -
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
Quantum of Excess provision reversed Lo Profit and Loss Account -

The Bank has not purchased / transférred any Special Mention Account (SMA) and Toan not in oefault, (March 31, 2021 pl).
The Bank has pot acquired any loans thrcugh assignment. (March 33, 2021 - Nil)
The Bank has nol acgquired any strossed toan (March 31, 2021 M)

?{g) Fraud accounts

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Number of cases Reported 172 573
Opening Balance 6.51 10.95
Amount of Fraud 5.56 3.78
Recovery / Write off of provision (10,35} [8.21)
Closing Balance® 1.73 6.51
Unamortised provision debited from 'other reserves’ as at the end of the year Wit Nil

* Inctudes reclass of fraud provision 10 "Schedule 9 - Net advances’ {provision for non-performing asset) amounting 10 4,98 crores lor the year ended March

31, 2021
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ¥i AR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
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Schedule 18 - Notes forming part of the Finangial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

7{h) Disclosure under Resolution framework for COVID-19 related stross
The: disclosure requirements as requlred by RBI circular dated AUBUSE B, 2020 {Resolution Framewaork 1.0) and May 5, 2021 [Resolution Framework 2 0} as at
March 31, 2022 is given below for the half year ending March 31, 2022:

Exposure to 1
Exposure to
accounts
lassified as et
g Standard classified as
a
| runsp’ uent to Ot (A), ot (A) oAl Staridard
| ol .| aggregate debt ) amount pald by | consequent to
H implementatio amount written
Type of Borrower . |that slipped Into the borrowers | Implementation
n of resalution off during the
NPA during Lhe during the half. | of resolution plan
plan—Position hall-year .
half- year year ~Position as at
as at the end of the
the gravious end of this half-
half-year yiisie
— [A}
|Personal Loans 155.23 35.97 10.61 19.70 99.61
Corporate Persans s . - -
‘of which MSMCs - - ; 4 -
Others = 577.81 20077 3217 119.45 257.60
Total 733,04 236,69 42,78 139,15 157.21

(i) Particulars of accounts restructured for ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector based on RBI guidelines dated January 01, 2019 and
further extended by RBI circular dated February 11, 2020 & August 06, 2020,
The Bank has restructured accounts as below,

Particulars® o March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
No of Accounts Restrugtured 6,407 8.001
Outstanding Amount g = 250.47 118.42
Pravision Amouny T . o S 20,25 5.92

* Represents active accounts

7(j) Disclosure on COVID - 19

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had led to a nation-wide lockdown in March 2020, This was followed by locatised lockdowns in areas with a
significant number of COVID-19 cases. Following the easing of iockdown measures, there was an improvement in economic activity in the second haif of fiscal
2021. India experienced a “second wave” of the COVIB-19 pandemic in April-May 2021 following the discovery of mutant coronavirus variants, leading 1o tha
re-impesition of regional lockdowns. These were gradually lifted as the second wave subsided.

The impact of COVID-19, including changes In customer behaviour and pandermic lears, as well as restrictions on business and individual activities, has led to
significant volatility in global and 1ndian financial markets and a significant decrease in global and local economic activities, The slawdown during the year ler
to a decrease inloan originations and In collection efficiency,

India is emerging from the COVIO-19 pandemic. The extent Lo which any new wave of COVID-19 will impact the Group's results will depend on ongoing as welt
as luture developmants, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, and any action to contain its
spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or electad by us.
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FAH amounts aie in indion Rupees o Crares unless othe stled)

#. Disclosures relating to securitisation

Details of Sales

Curing the year ended March 31, 2022 the Bank has nol entered into any secutitisation tansachons other thar Direcl sssigninents {3s mentioned below) in

accordance with the guidelines issued by the RBI (March 31, 2021 : Nil)

March 31, 2022

Particutar

_March 31, 2021

(1} No. of accounts seld duning the year 3

{is) Aggregate value of accounts sold during the year

(it} Aggregate Consideraton received during the year

{iv) Additional Consideration realised in respect of account translerred i eadiler years

(v} Aggregate gain over net book value durning the year

(vi) MRR

(wii] First Loss

(vii) Qutstanding Balance i N o 41,74 o 41,55

{vili} No. of SPV transaction for securitisation transaction -

Details of direct assignment transactions

The details of direct assignment activity of the Bank as an originator as per RBI puidelines to the Guidelings on Securifisation is gven helow.

Paticular — March 31, 2042 | March 31, 2021

{1} No. of accounts 652

[ii} Aggregate value of accounts sold to 5C 2.66

(i) Aggregate Consideration 2.66

(iv) Aggregate gain / loss over net book Value .

Details of book value of investmeant in security receipts (SRs) backed by NPAs

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Bank has invested % 92 52 crores in Security Receipts (March 31, 2021 M),

9. Exposures

9la) Exposure tu real estate sector

Category L B March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

A Direct exposure - 1,753.21 1,457.92

(1) Residential mortgages® 1,753.21 1,457.42
{of which housing loans eligible for inclusian in pricrity sector advances) 1,254.82 690.05

(i) Commercial real estate

{iii} Investments in mortgage backed securities (MBS) and other securitised exposure

o) Resicential

b} Commercial real estate

B) Indirect exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companies (HFCsl.

* tncludes only housing ‘oan

5{b) Exposure to Capital Market

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the bank has "Nil" exposure t¢ capital market instruments (March 31, 2021 : Nill. The Bank has written off investments
in equity shares of Alpha Micro Finance Consultants Private Limited, 100,000/ shares of % 10 each Fully pad up full pard up 010 crores during the previous

year ended Maech 31, 2021

9lc) Risk Category wise Country Exposure

Tha Bank's sip0Lares are concentrated i ndia, Fence Country Fisk expasure as st March 31, 2025 RiFMare 31202 =

9{d} Unsecured Advances

Particular

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Total unsecured advances of the bank

5,943

6,650 |

Estimated valug of such mtangivle securities

9(e} Details of Single Bocrower Limit (SBL), Group Borrower Limit [GBL) excecded by the Bank

During the year ended March 31, 2022 and previous year ended March 31, 2021, the Bank's credit exposures o single borrowers and proup borrowers were

within the imits prescribest under extant KB guidelines.
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Al @mounts are in Indian Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stoted)

5{t} Factoring Exposure

Thee fank does not have any factoring exposure as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 < Nit)

gk Intra Group Exposure

Thee Bank does not have any intra group exposure as 2t March 33, 2022 [March 31, 2021 - Nil)

9{h} Unhedged Forelign currency Exposure

The Fank deesn't have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021 Nil}
10. Concentration of Depasits, Advances, Exposures and NPA's

10(a} Concentration of deposits

j__q_;_t:l-iufars

Percentape of deposits of twenty largast depositors to total deposits of the Bank

March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Totaldeposits of twenty largest depositors 1,786,10 1,562.16
13.19% 12.57%

10{b) Concentration of advances

[Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Totaladvances to twenty largest barrowers™ 814.08 50312
6.17% 511%

Percentage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the Bank

*Advances comprise credit exposure {funded and non-funded credit limits) including derivative transactions if any, computed as per current exposure method

in actordance with RRI guidelines.

10[c) Concentration of Exposures

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
ITotal exposure to twenty farpest borrowers / customars® 81508 60312
Percentage of exposure of twenty largest borrowers / customers to tatal exposura of the Bank on 6.17% G.11%
borrowers / customers . '

*Exposures comprise credit exposure {funded and non-funded credit limits) including derivative transactions and investment exposure if any, in accordance

with RBf guidelines.

10({d) Concentration of NPAS

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Total Exgosure to the top twenty NPA accounts 15.00 19.83
1.98% 2.31%

Percentage of exposures ta the twenty largest NPA axposure Lo total Gross NPAS
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Schedule 18 - Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

11. Asset Liability Management (ALM)

Assets and liabilities are classified in the maturity buckets as per the guidelines issued by the RBI.

Balances with
As at March 31, 2022 Deposits Advances* Investments Borrowings s 2d f Seciency Forergn.c.u.rrency
money at call assets liabilities

| and short notice

ay -1 5253 | 4434 | 288696 . 5.06 . -

t0 7 Days. 414.43 | (330.13) 64.23 1145 930.00 = S
8 10 14 Days 31892 | (223.59) 49.13 2.50 g : :
15 to 30 Days 271.06 | 218.72 | 45.86 2 - - =
31 Days and up to 2 months 659.92 | (57.42) 1m176 | 9183 z - -
More than 2 months and up to 3 months 77695 | 38379 124.97 _52.50 - - -
Over 3 months and up to 6 months 1,489.72 | 968.56 | 212.32 372.55 = - -
Over 6 months and up to 1 year 3,446.62 | 2,489.50 | 505.37 482.44 - -
Over 1 Year and up to 3 years 5,631.73 ! 4,167.56 | 944.51 2,681.80 1.51 - -
Over 3 Years and up to 5 years 469.31 | 1,469.29 [ 107.96 716.42 - - = _—
Over 5 years == 9.01 | 3,876.06 | 1219 98.34 __0s0] - -
Total 13,540.20 13,006.68 | 5,065.26 | 4,509.83 | 937.07 5 =

I Balances with
As at March 31, 2021 Deposits Advances® Investments Borrowings | ~banksiard e iR Y Forel.gn.c.u.rrency
money at call assets liabilities

] | . |iand short notice |
Day-1 - 2297 |l J3183, 2,689.57 2.05 i 1,654.49 | - =
2-7 Days. 189.80 | 164.43 | 34.78 2945 || 2300 L - -
18-14 Days 167.07 | (73.52) 27.61 | - — - =
15-30 Days 261.82 | 556.59 ol - =1 = -
31 Days and up to 2 months 622.81 | 469.38 | 104.50 | 208.00 o | = =
More than 2 months and up to 3 months 726.29 | 328.95 122.34 18.28 3.97 | -
Over 3 months and up to 6 months 1,804.83 1,131.07 271.47 471.69 106.07 | — -
iOver 6 months and up to 1 year 2,964.06 2,485.64 475.25 619.15 5.40 ' = -
IOver 1 Year and up to 3 years 5,162.60 | — 3,041.48 | 821.78 2,063.38 4.04 | -
Over 3 Years and up to S years 449.55 1,134.14 99.01 1,368.47 - | - |_
Over 5 years 9.13 2,360.25 135 3485 051 [ o .
Total 12,38593 | 11,611.92 4,697.79 4,815.32 1,797.48 [ = =

Classification of assets and liabilities under the different maturity buckets is based on the same estimates and assumptions as used by the Bank for compiling the return

submitted to the RBI.

RBI vide it's circular dated March 27, 2020 on ‘Covid-19 Regulatory Package' permitted the Banks to grant a moratorium of three months on payment of all instalments falling
due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020. Also, RBI vide it's circular dated May 23, 2020 further extended the moratorium period by another three months from June 1,
2020 to August 31, 2020. The Bank in line with the said circulars has offered moratorium to all its customers for the said period and has incorporated the effect of the
moratorium on the respective maturity buckets presented above. The Bank estimates that considerable portion of the cash flows impacted by the moratorium will be received

within 1-3 years from the balance sheet date and the same has been factored in the above disclosure.

*Negative number in advances indicates amount due under Inter-Bank Participation Certificate with risk sharing.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 {Contd.)

fAll amounts are in indion Rupees in Crores unless otherwice stoted)
12. Liquidity Coverage Ratia

Quantitarive information on Lquidity coverage ratio (LCR) is given below:

June 30, 2021

September 30, 2021

December 31, 2021

March 31, 2022

Particulars To.tai Total weighted To_tai Total weighted To.tal Total weighted To_tai Total weighte
unweighted unweighted unweighted unweighted
value {average} value (average) vaiue {average) value (averag:
value value value value
1 Total High Quality Uquid Assets {HQLA) 6,6388.65 6,688.65 5,855.18 5,895.18 5,689.71 5,689.71 4,807.81 | 1,807.5
Cash Qutflows I
2 Retail deposits and deposits from small business customers, of which: 7,420.60 499.07 7,661 02 516.25 7,884.26 538.39 7.871.38 533.8
{1} Stable deposits 4,859.67 242,98 4,997.11 249.86 5,000.76 250.04 ,066.56 ) 253.3
{ii} Less stable depasits 2,560.93 256.09 2,663.91 266.3% 2,883.50 28835 2,804.8 280.5
3 Unsecured wnolesale funding, of which: 1,074.05 104.00 1,035.836 96.96 1,054.49 101.60 957.24 T 954
(i} Operational depasits (alt counterparties) - - - -
{ii} Non-operational deposits (all counterparties) 1,074.05 104.00 1,035.85 96.96 1,054.49 101.60 997.84 3
{iii} Unsecured debt - . - - - -
4 Secured wholesale funding 120.77 120.77 86.87 96.87 338.41 338.41 274.12 74.1
5 Additional requirements, of which | 60.71 3.04 55.14 276 70.35 352 85.88 43
{1} Dutﬂqws related to derivative exposures and;c)thcr collateral requirements - - - - -
tii} Outflows refated to loss of funding on debt groducts - - - - - -
(iit) Credit and liquidity facilities 80.71 3.04 55.14 276 70.35 3.52 £5.88 4
& Other contractual funding obligation 350.48 350.43 2687.94 267,92 112.09 112.09 259.71 ]
7 Other contingent funding obligations 37.44 1.83 39.66 391 39.66 191 39.66 9
8 Total cash outflows 9,064.06 1,079.20 9,156.49 982.69 9,499.26 1,085.92 9,528.80 1,169.3
Cash inflows
3 Secured lending (e.g. reverse repo) - - 5 % - - 7
10 Inflows from fully performing exposures 686.70 348.35 735.47 367.73 738.28 369.14 605.55 302.
11 Other cash inflows 1.03 1.03 0.23 0.2 0.95 0.39 039 0.4
12 Total cash inflows 697.73 349.38 735.71 367.97 735.27 370.13 605.94 303.
21 Total HQLA 6,688.65 6,688.65 5,895.18 5,895.18 5,689.71 5,689.71 4,B07.91 4,807.9
| 22 Tatal Net Cash Outflows 8,366.33 729.82 8,420.78 614.72 8,759.99 725.79 8,922.86 | 866.
23 Liguidity Coverage Ratio (%} 916.48% 959.00% 783.93% | 555.1
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JTANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

» staled]

(A ameunts are i Indian Rupees in Crores unless oths

13, Contingent liabilitles

Contingent liabilities e e e o - March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 |
income tax liability 3047 35.91
Guarantees given on behall of constituents b 2.50 2.50
Others o 8.77 9.05
Total S a1.74 47.46

n F(:h;u—a}\,—r 261‘1‘ rtié‘ﬂéhoﬁ?.mm Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified that certain special allowances should be considered to measure
obligations under Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the PF Act). The Bank has been legally advised that thoere are
interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retraspectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past
periads. Due to imperative challenges, the Bank has not disclosed contingent Lability amount for past liability.

Description of contingent labilities o
1, Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts -|The Bank is a party to various taxation matters in respect of which appeals are pending.
taxation The Bank expects the outcome of the appeals to be faverable based on decisions on
similar issues in the previous years by the appellate authernities, based on the tacts of the

case and taxation laws.

2, Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts ~IThe Bank is a party to varlous legal proceedings in the normal course of business. The
others Bank does not expect the outcome of these praceadings to have a material adverse effect
en the Rank's financial conditions, results of operations or cash Hows.

3. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, acceptances,|As a part of its commercial banking activities, the Bank issues guarantees on behalf of its
endorsements and other obligations customers. Guarantees generally represent irrevocable assurances that the Bank will
make payments in the event of the customer failing to fulfill its financial or performance
abligations.

4, Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable These Include; a) Guarantees given by Bank b) Credit enhancements in respect of
securitised-out loans; ¢} Bills rediscounted by the Bank; d} Capital commitments.

14, Employee benefits

Employment benefits - Gratuity

The Bank has non-contributory defined banefit arrangement providing gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and years of service,
Bank provides for gratuity as per the pravisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, as amended. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of
india. The fellowing tables summarise the components of net besefit expense recognised in the Profit and Loss Account and the funded status and

amounts recognised in the Balanca Sheet.

The defined gratuity benefit plans are valued by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credil method as per the
requirement of AS-15.
During the yoar ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Bank does not have unamortised gratuity and pension Lability,

Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss Account
Particulars

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Current service cost 317 2.62
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.11 {0.11)
Past service cost vested benefit recognised during the year -
Net actuarial toss recegnized in the year 5.09 6.27
SRR = ) 8.37 8.78

Employer Expenses

Net Uiability/ {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Particulars

—iPresentvatoe of Detined BerehitOblipation 2302 1821
Fair value of plan assets 23.44 15.37
Net {asset) / liability recognized in balance sheet {C.42) 2.84
Less: Unrecognised Past Service Cost o - .
{Asset)/Liability recognized In balance sheet |oay 2.84
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FOR THL YEAR ENDED MARRCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)

JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED
SCHEDULES FORMING PART GF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{All amounts are 1n Indian Rupees in Crores unless athenwise staiea)

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Gbligation (DBO)

(Particulars B | Maech 31, 2022 | March 31,2021 |
Present Value of DBO at start of year - ‘ T Tt
Interest cost 0.70 0.73
Current service cosl 317 2.62
Past service cost vested beneht recognised dusing the year .

Benefits pad {3.82) {2.30)
Actuariai loss/(gain) - A 595
Present Value of DBO at end of year B R ::ﬁ :t _:__:__ t_. 23,02 | 821
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets - o T T )
Particulars i - March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of year o . 15.37 13.06
Expected return on plan assets 0.549 0.834
Centributions by employer 11,63 4,29
Benelits paid {382} (2.30)
Actuarial gain /{ loss) {0.33) (0.52)
Fair value of plan assats at end of year o 23.44 15.37
Investment detalls of plan assets

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance with Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC) el 2344 15.37

information of investment details of plan assets are not availatie, hence not disclosed and the obligation Is funded with UIC,

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

'Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
{Discount rate o 5.15% 3.806%
Expected rate of return on assets 5.15% 3.86%
Employee turnover {in service 0 years and below) 42% 4$3%
Employee turnaver {in service 1 yearsto 2 years) 39% 46%
Employee turnover (in service 3 years to 4 years) 31% A%
Employe turnover (in service 5 years and above) 3% 33%
Salary growth rate 6.00% 6.00%
i 201 2.14 B
Martality Rate During Employment - Indian Assured Lives Mortality (IALM) L Iai;d: e 'U?:S‘ll)i:
Expected average remaining working lives of employees 2V eaey 1Year
Experience Adjustments for the year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 19-20| FY 18-19 FY17-18]
Prasent Value of DBO at the end of the year 23.02 1821 11411 7.66 5.65
Fair Valuation of Plan Assets 23,44 15.37 13.06 ' 14.54 9.59
Funded Status [Surplus/{Deficit}) 0.42 {2.84) 1.66 | G.89 .94
Exgperience adjustment on plar liabifities : Gain / {Loss) {3 54} {3.45) (1.71) (1.74) {3.16)
Experience adjustment on plan Assets ; Gain / ( Loss ) {0.33) 10.52) [1.04) (.69} lU.G#)JI

Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund

The Bank makes Provident Fund contributions to Employees Provident Fund Organisation for qualifying employees at the specilied percenmtage of the
payrolt costs to the Fund, The has Bank recognised ¥ 37,99 crores (March 31, 2021: % 34,30 crores) towards Pravident Fund contributions.

Employee benetits - compensated absences

The sctuarial labitity In respect of privitege leave granted to employees of the Bank and outstanding as at March 31, 2022 s ¥ 6,52 crores (March 31,

2021 16,06 crores).

Assumption used In determining the privilege leave liability

| ™areh 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Discount rate 5.15% 3.86%
6% 6%

Salary escalation rate

Attrition rate:

For service O years and below A2%! 53.00%
For service 1 years to 2 years 39% 46,00%
For service 3 years Lo 4 years 31% 44.00%
Fer service 5 yeurs and above 23% 31.00%

March 31, 2022 |

March 31, 2021

;’/‘h\

Lo %

A0 a i_‘




(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees in Crores unloss otherwise stated)

15, Disclosures on Remuneration
A} Qualitative Disclosures

(2) Informatien relating to the badies that oversee remuneration,

b)

Name, composition and mandate of the main body overseeing remunaration

The Nomination and Remwuneration Committee (NRC) of the Booard is the main body overseeing remuneration, As at March 31, 2022,
the NRC had five members of which three are Independent Directors. The functions of the Committee Include recommendation of
appointment of Directors to the Board, evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and directors including the Managing
Director & CEO, overseelng the grant of options under the Employees Stack Option Scheme,

External consultants whose advice has been sought, the body by which they were commissioned, and in what areas of the
remuneration process

Not Applicable

Scope of the Bank's remuneration policy (e.g. by regions, business lines), including the extent to which it Is applicable to foreign

subsidiaries and branches
The Remuneration Pelicy of the Baak was approved by the Board on february 8, 2018, pursuant to the puidelines issued by RAI, to

cover all employees of the Bank,

The Remuneration policy was amended by the Board on August 13, 2020 to align the policy in line with current regulatory
amendments, Compensation Pelicy covers all employees of the Bank.

Type of employees covered and number of such employees

All permanent employees of the Bank are covered. The total number of permanent employees of the Bank at March 31, 2022 was
15,641 (March 31, 2021: 16,891), who were live as on reporting date including those on probation and confirmed employees,

Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes and Key features and objectives of remuneration policy
The compensation philosophy of the Bank is structured to support the achievement of the Bank’s on-going business abjectives by
rewarding achievement of objectives finked directly to its strategic business prioritics. The main objectives of the remunaration palicy
of the Bank are as follows:

* Attract, engage and retain talent

* Ensure fairness In the pay structure

¢ Ensure alignment with the organizational values, Le., Honesty, Discipline, Respect, Service
* Foster a culture of rewarding and recognizing performance,

Effective governance of compensation:
The NRC shall oversee the framing, review and implementation of the compensation policy.

Alignment of compensation philosephy with prudent risk taking:

The employee’s compensation will take account of the risks that he/she takes on behalf of the organization and intends to discourage
excessive risk taking. It ensures that the compensation works in harmony with other practices to implement balanced risk postures.
Also, the committee shall ensure that employees engaged in financial and risk control will be interdependent, have appropriate
authority and be compensated in a manner that is indopendent of the business areas they oversee and commensurate with their key
role in the Bank,

Whether the remuneration committee reviewed the firm’s remuneration policy during the past year, and if so, an overview of any
changes that were made:
The Board/NRC has reviewed the Bank’s remuneration policy during the year under review

Discussion of how the Bank ensures that risk and compllance employees are remunerated Independently of the businesses they
oversee:
The committee shall ensure that employees engaged in financlal and risk contral will be independent, have appropriate autharity, and

be compensated in a manner that is independent of the business areas they oversee and commensurale with their koy fale in the

<)

Bank, The remuneration for the employees in the risk and compliance function will be determined independent of other business
areqs and shall be adequate to attract quatitied and experienced professionals. The performance measures of such employees shall be
based principally on the achievement of the objectives of their functions

Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account In the remuneration processes,

Overview of the key risks that the Bank takes into account when implementing remuneration measures:
The committee shall work in close coordination with Risk Management Commiltee of the small finance bank, in order 1o achigve

offective alignment between remuneration and risks
Overview of the nature and type of key measures used to take account of these risks, including risk difficult to measure

Compensation works in harmony with other practices 1o implement balanced risk postures.




L e e

(Al dmounts are m indian Rupees in Crores unless otherwise slated)

15. Disclosures on Remuneration {Contd.)

Discussion of the ways in which these measures affect remuneration:
The emptoyes’s compensation will take account of the risks that he/she takes on behalf of the organization and intends to discaus age
excessive risk Laking. It ensures that the compensation works in hatmany with other practices to implement balanced risk postures

Discussion of how the nature and type of these measures have changed over the past year and reasons for the changes, as well as
the impact of changes on remuneration:
Not applicable

d) Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks to link performance during a performance measurement period with levels of
remuneration:

The main pedormance metnes include profitability, business growth, asset quality, compliance and customer service,

e) Adiscussion of the bank’s policy on deferral and vesting of variable remuneration and a discussion of the bank’s policy and criteria
for adjusting deferred remuneration before vesting and after vesting;

The Banks cemuneration policy covers Whole Time Dicectors / Chicf Executive Oificer/ Other Malerial Risk Takers of the Bank,

f)  Description of the ditferent forms of variable remuneration (.., cash and types af share-linked instruments) that the bank utilizes
and the rationale for using these different forms.

Variable remuneration includes following distinct forms:

L Statutory Bonus:

Statutory Boaus is paid as per Payment of Bonus Act, 1965,

2. Variable Pay ;

Variable pay component ensutes that we reward the employees based on the Individual achievements and the Bank's performance
measured against goals established for the perfonmance year.

a) Cash Bonus:

The budget for Annual Cash Bonus, will depend on the bank's profitabifity. The actual pay-out to the individual will further depend on
hisfher performance, and at the sole discretion of the management.

b) Incentives:

All Business roles up to the level of Zonal Business Heads are eligible for incentives. Pay out of incentive for aggregator roles degends
upon average incentives earned by the front line team. These incentives are capped to ensure integrity and compliance,

For the front line field roles like CREC, CRES, BDE, Area Heads in Collections, Assets and Liabifities Collections, incentives are paid on a
manthly basis. Roles in operations such as CRE, Teller, BOM or other aggregator roles in Business like Branch Sales Manager, Regicnal
Heads and Zonal Heads, a portion of monthly incenitves are retained and is paid after the end of performance year

Any additien/modification would be approved by the MDECED.

¢) Share-linked Instruments:

Currently ESOPs/ RSUs ate granted to employees by (he management, based on the Board approved schemes, Share-iinked
instruments will be fair valued on the date of grant by the bank. As per the Good Leavers policy of the Bank, payment towards any
deferred instrument or cash bonus will require approval of the MD&CED.

3. Rewards & Recognition:

The Bank may, with the approval of the MD&CEQ, run various cantests for its employees to support the achievement of the Bank’s on
going business objectives. These contests may carry financial/ather rewards as permitted by extant regulations.
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JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Comd. )

{Ail amixanls cre i indian Rupees i Crorey anfess othermwese stated)
{ } o)

14, Disclosure of Complaints
a) Summary information on complaints recelved by the bank from customers and from the Officas of Ombudsman .

I;articulars March 31,_1-0.2—:'!_. m;ra:—{l 2021
Complaints received by the bank from ilﬂs‘ cu"s:m;n;z:{ — ee—— = N
1- Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year R 77311 I _-__—kwj-;‘:
2. Number of complaints received during the year i I o __';,T‘J-(; qu_,;l
j._ Numker of complaints disposed during the year T EEIO T f—;-:x
3.1 OF which, number of complaints rejected by the bank o ‘ ¢ - {J
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - 7 B :’01 211
I{ddillldilldh]ﬁ con»plailii;tcccived by the bank from QUQOs - i
-'.a Number of maintainable complaints received by the bank from OBOs 155 ___m?i;l
5.1 0F5, number of complaints resalved in faveur of the bank by OiOs o 147 !‘}:!'
3 5.2 QF 5, number of camplaints resolved through conciliation/medation/advisorios issucd by OBOs _ 3 — 12
5.3 01, number of complaints resoived after passing of Awards by D805 against the bank ) - o t"-ﬁ —
6. Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time {other than those appealed) " .

Nota:

1 Maintainable complaints refer te complaints on the grounds specifically mentiored in Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously Banking
Cmbudsman Schema, 2006) and covered within the ambi of the Scheme.

2. The above disclosure does not include 873 complaints which were closed within next working day [As per the section 16.5 of the #B1's Master Circular an
Customer Service in banks dated July 01, 2015, of' complaints redressed within next working day need not be inciuded 1n the statament of complaints)

b Top five grounds of complaints received by the bank from customers

% increase/
Number of decrease in the
Number of Number of 01 5, number af
6 complaints ? number of - e
rounds of complaints, complaints complaints complaints
pending at the complalnts :
{i.e. complaints relating to) beginning of recelved during P pending at the | pending beyond
E‘sh:! yeagr the year " end of the year 30days
yﬂﬂf e
March 31, 2022
Deposit Accounts 33 1,913 3% 13 -
ATM / Debit Cards 10 502 -0 7% 20
Loans & advances 44 1,300 2% N
Net Banking /Mobile Banking/Point of Sales 41 1,345 -3% 52
staff Behaviour 6 196 -14% E)
Others 52 234 5% 82
Total 211 5,890 -19% 201
wincrease/ | ]
Number of decrease in the
t be f
- S Number 0 oibErar Number of Of §, number of
Grounds of complaints, : complaints . complaints complaints
. I pending at the § X complaints . )
(i.e. complaints relating to) T~ received during MR pending al the | pending beyond
ti:m V"-':f the year shi Bl end of the year 30 days
year
March 31, 2021
ATM / Debit Cards 51 2H0 1% 38
Net Banking /Mobile Banking/Point of Salas 54 1387 -68% 30
Bepasit Accounts 27 1342 -36% 44
Loans & advances 19 1278 -54% 41
Staff Behaviour 2 347 -14% o
Others 12 247 6% 52
Total 185 7,11 A43% 211 .

19. Off balance sheet 5PVs

Dutng the year ended March 31, 2022, there are no ¢ff balance sheat SPYs sponsared by the Bank, which ageds 1o be cansolidated a5 per accounting n

{March 31, 2021; M},




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK UMITED

SCHEDULES FORMIMG PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Centd.)
{Alf emaunts are in Indion Rupees in Crores yntess
20, Transfers to Depositar Education and Awarenpss Fund {DEAF)

otherwise stated)

Guning the year ended March 31, 2022, no amount was required to be transferred to Bepositor Cducation and Awareness Fund. {March 31,2071 Mily

21, Penalties tevied by the R8I

During the year ended March 31, 2022, no penalty was imposed by the RBI on the Bank (March 31, 2021 Nil)

22. Other Disclosures

a} Business ratlo

Particulars e ‘Uﬁ:__ o o o March 3I,Eﬁi2: March 31‘:1‘6?]
1] _Interestincome as a percentage Yo working funds’ 13.48% 15.34%
) _Netinterestincome as a percentage to king funds' B 6.87% 7.76%
dii_Nan-interost income as a percontage to wcr_}.mg funds’ = T 1.60% o 1.44%
iv) Costof Deposits i o 719% 8.07%
W) Net Interest Margin® G 7.26% 8.27%
vi) Operating profit’ as a percentage to working funds' 2.84% LI
vii) Return an average assets” 0.03% 0.52%
vili) Return on Equity Ratie® 0.47% 7.49%
ix) Debt-Equity Ratio® 3.97 448
x) Busingss' (deposit plus net advances) per employea® (in S crores) 144 138
«) Profit per amployee® {in Lerores) 0.0003 0.0053
xill Pravision coverage ratio” 32.19% 21.89%

Working funds represent the monthiy average of total assets texcluding accumulated losses, it any) computad for reparting dates of Form ¥ submitted to

Ratunder Section 27 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 for the cutrent year

2. NetInterest income/ Average Earming Assets. Net Interest Income= Interest Income - Interest Expensn

3. Operating profit Is net profit for the year before provisions and contingencies.

4. Return on average assets is ccmputed with reference ta average working funds.

5. Return on equity ratio is computed with referance to monthly average of total equity (including reserve & surplus).
6. Debt equity ratio ts computed with referance to total borrowings to total eguity as of financial year end.

7. "Business” is the total of net advances and deposits {net of inter-bank deposits).

8. Productivity ratios are based on average employea number

ft Provision coverage ratio does not include technical weite ofls Incluching technical write off, Provision rovarage ratio

b) Bancassurance business & Marketing and distribution

is 86 82% {March 31, 2021: 82.43%).

Nature of Income March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Towards selling of life insurance policies 1671 16.30
Towards selling of non-life insurance palicies 4.65 2.63
Foes [ ramunaration received from the marketing and distribution function - -
Total 21,36 18.93

€] Priority Sector Lending Certificates {'PSLCs'):
The Baak enters into transactions for the sale or purchase of Priority Sector Leading Certficates {PSLEs). In the case

of a sale transaction, the Bank sells the

fulfitment of prioeity sectar abligation and in the case of a purchase transaction the Bank buys the fulfilment of priarity sector obligation through RRI trading

platform. There is no transfer of risks or laan

assets in such transactions. The details of purchase / sale of PSLC during the year are as under:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
PSLC Category

PSLCBought | PSLC Sold PSLC Bought PSLC Sold
Agricutture . 100.00 - -
Small and Marginal Farmars . :
Micra Enterprises - 400,00
Gansrat e g 510.00 . ]
Total o - 1,010.00 - .

d) Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shewn under the head ‘Expenditure’ in Profit and Loss Account

Particulars ) -

{1) Provisian tor 8Pl T

(i Provision towards NPA fincluding bad debts written off)
it} Provision made towards Income tax

(iv) Other Provisions and Contingencies

Pravision for standard assets o -
Pravision for restructured standacd assets Lincludiog DIFY)

Pravisions for depreciation on Investment
Provisions for frauds and ethers =

March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

. ) 3158

o R 259 312)
i o {48 16) 9134

o i o ) DX

R 1.46 13.60)

569.32 366.60

[Total




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIRITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENOED MARCH 31, 2022 [Contd,)
LA amounis are e dian Rupees o Cigtes unless otherwise stated)

o) Inter-bank Participation (1BPC) with risk sharing

Hank nas rased funds through of issue of IBECs with risk sh g, the gutstanding bagace al IBPC {1k sharn

(rdarch 31, 2071, TS89 88 crores).

f} implementation of IFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)

The Ministry of Corparate Affairs, i its press release dated lanuary 18, 2016, had issued a roadmap for implementation of indian Accounting Standards {IND-
AS) tar scheduled commercial banks, insutersfinsurance companies and non banking fmancial campanies, which was subsequently confirmed by the jpl
through s circutar dated Febeuary 11, 2016 This roadmap required these institutions 10 prepare INDAAS based financial statements for the accounting
periods beginaing Aprl L. 2016 with comparatves for the penads beginang Apal 1, 2017, The implementation of iNE-AS Ly banks requires cortain lagislative
thanges in the format of financisl statemaents (o comply with the disclosures required under IND-AS In Aprid 2018, the RB! delerced the wnplementation of
ING-AS by a year by when the necessary legislative amendments ware expecled. The legistative amendments recommended by the REE are under
consideration by the Governmaent of India Accordingly, the RBI, th rough its circatar dated March 22, 2019, defarcad the inplementation of IND-AS unti
further notice.

g Paymeot of DICGC Insurance Premium

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 |
) Payment of OICGC Insurance Premium {Including GST) T 15.25 1200
it) Arrears in Payment of DICGC Premium = o

Total ' - B 15.25 12,01

h) Proposed Dividend

Duning the year ended March 31, 2022 the Bank has not declared any dividend. The Reserve Bank ofindia, vide its circular dated April 17, 2020 and Decemboer
4, 2020, has decided that banks shall not make any further dividend pay-outs from profits, with a view that banks must canserve capital in an enviranment of
heightened uncertainty caused by COVID-19. Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Bank has not progosed any dividend for the year ended March 31,
2021.

i) Disclosure of Letters of Comfort {toC) issued by the Bank

The Bank has not issued letter of comfort during the year ended March 31, 2022, (March 31, 2021; Nil)

) Investor education and protection fund

There is no amount required to be teanslerred 10 Investor Fducation and Pretection Fund by the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2022, (March 31, 2021
Nii).

k) Details of payments to Auditors as per the Profit and Loss Account

Particulars L March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Audit Fees o 0.96 0.97
Tax audit fees a2 .02
Other services 0.02 0.07
Qut-of pocket expenses P B 0oL 002
Total o T 1.01 | 108

1) Long term contracts

e Bank has 4 process whereby pariodically ali lorig term contracts including dervative contracts if any, are assessod for material foresevable losses. Al the
year end, the Bank has reviewed and ensured that no provision is required under any law or accounting standard on such long term contracts as on harch
31, 2022 {(March 31, 2021: Nit).

) Provision for credit card and debit card reward points

The Bank 15 not providing any reward points on debit cards. Further the Bank has notl issued any credi caed during year ended March 31, 2022, (March 31,
2021: Nil

The Bank has not cecogrised deferred tax asset or deferred tax fiabulity far the current year and previcus year. Delerred tax assers are reviewsd 0l gach
Balance Sheet date and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is virtually certain 1o be realized

The Bank has carried forward business losses on which, the net delerred tax assel ameunting to X L0285, 11 crores as at March 31, 2022 (11,018 46 crores as
at March 31, 2021 has not been recognised in the absence of virtual certainty, The saig amount is available for sot off agawst future income tax abiity
subject to availability of sufficlent taxable income in the years of set off




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITFD

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Contd.)
(Al emaunts are i indicn R anees i Crores yriess otherwase stuted)

o) Leases

Operating Jease primarily comprises of office premises, which are renewable at the astian of the Bank. The followng table sets forth the details of ftare
rentdls payable on non-canceflable operating leases

Particulars e March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Mat later than one year ' - 5.11 2.11
Later than one year but not later than five years 1416 B52
Later than five years . -
Mimimum lease payments recognised in Profit and Loss Account 70.86 81.42
- Of which lease expanse pertaining to nun-cancellable lpases A.06] 4.52

the teems of renewal and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements, there are no undue restrictions ar onerous clauses In the
agreement. All other operating lease agreaments entered Into by the Bank are cancellabla in nature,

The Bank has not sua- lnased any of the propertios taken on lease. There are po provisions ralating to contingent rent

p} Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)

Gross amount required to be spent on CSR activities by the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2022 is Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil) under section 135 of the
Companles Act, 20113,

1) Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2022

Amount unpaid
Particulars Amount spent Jarovision Total
1) Construction facquisition of asset - . .
1i) on purpose other than (i) above 0.12 0.12
Total 0.12 - 0.12
It} Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2021
f= Amount unpaid
Particulars Amount spent . Total
[provision
i) Construction facquisition of asset . .
ii} on purpose ether than i) abave 0.76 - 0.76
Total 0.76 - 0.76

As part of organisational effort to rationalize costs, the Management took a strategic decisian to limit the CSR expenditure during the current year and
previous year

q) Small and micro industries

under the Micro, Smail and Madium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came inta force from Dctober 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to he
made relating to Micre, Small and Medium enteeprises. There have been no reported cases of delays in payments to micto and smalt enterprises or of
interest payments due to delays in such payments for the year endad March 31, 2022 {March 31, 2021 Nit). The above is based ¢n the information availabie
with the Bank which has been relied upon by the auditors.

t} Interest on interest

In accordance with the RBE natification dated April 7, 2021, the Bank is required to refund / adjust ‘interest on interest’ charged to borrowers. As required by
the RBEnatification, the methodology far calcutation of such interest on interest has been circulated by the Indian Banks' Association, The Bank has framed a
Board approved policy in this regard and Is in the process of sultaoly inplementing the methodology. As at March 31, 2021, the Bank bas created a Habilty
towards estimated interest relief of T 11,07 crores and reduced the same from the interest income.

s) Change in accounting policy

The Bank has followed consistently the same significant accounting polivies i the presaration of annual financial results for the year ended March 31, 2022,

except for the following:

—45}—'1#&-1-1&3593&&69&9!-mﬁgﬁ-ammabhﬂwmm-'mmgmﬁ'ammrmrraum—hmchﬂ'rzmﬁmdwgﬁ‘ﬁé—rmﬂgﬂm i

now recognised on receipt basis. As a result of above change in the accounting policy, interest income and other income for the quarter and year is lower by
R 1.15 crores & X469 crores with a consequent impact on profit after tax.

(ii} RBI vide its clarification dated August 30, 2021, on Guidalines on Compensation of Whole Time Directors/ Chief Executive Officers/ Material Risk Takers
and Control Function $talf, advised Banks that the fair valun of share-linked instruments on the date of grant should be recognised as an expensa for ail
insteuments granted after the accaurting peciod ending March 31, 2021 Accordingly, the Bank has chanpad ity accounting policy from intrinsic value method
to the fair value methed for such class of empioyees. The far vatue of the stuck-based compensation is sstimated on the date of grant usng Black-Scholes
model and is recognised as compensation expense over the vosting pariod. As a result of changes in RBI puidelines an share-based payment, 'Employees Cost’
for the quarter and year ended Macch 31, 2027 s highar by T 1,29 crores and 1 180 crores respectively with a consequent impact on profit altes Lax

t) Code on Social Security
The Coda on Soziat Security 2020 ("the Code') refating 1o employes benefits, during the employment and postem ployment, has received Presidential assent
endeptember 28, 2020, The Code has been published i the Gazette of India Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the
Code on November 13, 2000 The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet 1o be notifed and rutes for quantifying the financial impact are
not yet ssued. The Bank witl assess the impact of the Code and will give approprate impact in the financial statements in the penad in which, the Cade
tecomaes effective and the relatad rules 1o determine the financiglimpant are published,




JANA SMALL FINANCE BANK LIMITED

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11, 2022 (Contd.)

(Al emounts are in Inchon Rupees in Crares unless otherwise stated)

u) Listing requirement for equity shares of the Bank

As per Small Finance Bank Licensing Guidelines Issued by the RBI, the equity shares of the Bank are required to be listed on 2 stock exchange in India within
three years from the date of commencement of banking business i.e., March 27, 202 1. The Bank has filed draft red herring prospectus [DRHP) with Securities
Exchange Board of India (SLBI) on March 31, 2021 and received SLBI'S approval o raise funds through IPO on July 12, 2021

v) Disclosuse under Rule 11 (e} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

The Bank, as part of its normal banking busingss, grants 10ans and advances 10 its constituents including foreign entities with permission to lend or invest ot
provide guarantee or security or the like In other entities identified by such constituents. Similarly, the 8ank accepts depesits from its constituents, whe may
instruct the Bank to lend/invest/provide guarantee or securily or the fike against such deposit in other entities identified by such constituents. These
transactions ace part of Bank’s normal banking business, which is condutted after exercising proper due diligence including adherence w "Know Your
Customer” guidalines as applicable in respective jurisdiction.

Other than the nature of transactions described above, the Bank has not advanced /tent / invested / provided guarantee or security to or in any ather person
with an understanding to lendfinvest/provide guarantee or security or the like 1o or in any other person. Similarly, other than the nature of transactions
described above, the Bank has not received any funds from any other person with an understanding that the Bank shall lend or invest or provide guarantee

or securily or the like to or in any other person,

w) Previcus year audit
The financial results for the year ended March 31, 2021 were audited by another firm of Chartered Accountants, MSKC & Associates, on which they had
issued unmodified opinion,

x) Comparatives
figuras for the previous year have bean regrouped and reclassifiod wherever necessary to conform with the current year's presentation,
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